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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good morning and

          3  welcome. Today's Transportation Committee hearing is

          4  convened to explore the New York City Subway System

          5  changes announced by the MTA.  The changes are

          6  advanced in scope that represent the most

          7  significant modifications to our subway systems in

          8  decades.  The Committee hopes to force a productive

          9  dialogue today for both the MTA and the public

         10  regarding these changes.

         11                 The Committee will also consider two

         12  resolutions. One is 1840 and the 1841, which relates

         13  to the issues of changes to the subway system.

         14                 Resolution No. 1840 deals with

         15  changes to the G Line, while Resolution No. 1841

         16  deals with the virtual closing of the Grand Street

         17  Station in Manhattan.  Both of these Resolutions

         18  will be considered in the overall context of the

         19  issues discussed today.

         20                 New York City Subway System serves as

         21  the life line for millions of New Yorkers.  It's how

         22  they get to work, travel to recreational activities,

         23  and how they get home.  It is simply the vehicle by

         24  which they move around the City.

         25                 The changes announced by the MTA will
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          2  effect thousands, if not millions, of riders daily.

          3  In many cases these changes will result in hardship

          4  and inconvenience, because for the first time many

          5  riders will be forced to transfer to additional

          6  trains to reach their destinations.  Confusion will

          7  also reign because several lines and their riders

          8  are familiar with, will no longer run the same

          9  routes, while new subway lines are being introduced.

         10    Traditionally, many riders will be forced to

         11  access the highways, access the subway system at an

         12  unfamiliar subway station, because the one they had

         13  relied upon for many years will now be bypassed by

         14  existing subway lines.

         15                 The riding public should not simply

         16  be made aware of the changes by the MTA and educated

         17  about them as well.  The public should be consulted

         18  and given the opportunity to voice their opinions

         19  about changes that affect their daily lives so

         20  severely. The MTA has thus far been largely

         21  unwilling to hold adequate public hearings to listen

         22  to the people.  Today this Committee hopes to give

         23  them that chance.

         24                 The issue that we have here in the

         25  City Council is that we, as a body, believe that it
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          2  is important to have dialogue with the communities.

          3  There are times that we are not required to hold

          4  public hearings.  In fact, I can tell you that there

          5  are items that come before this body that many times

          6  are not required to hold hearings, and yet, we hold

          7  the hearings and we vote on it so the public can be

          8  a part of the testimony and can have input on what

          9  we're voting on.  And I believe the same should be

         10  with the MTA. Although, our Counsel believes that

         11  the law is not being interpreted correctly, that

         12  because this is temporary, that law itself is fuzzy,

         13  not the fuzzy math that they're teaching in New York

         14  City, the Board of Education, but maybe there is a

         15  new fuzzy way of doing things in the MTA.  But the

         16  law, the way, according to our interpretation, does

         17  require a public hearing, and because they're not

         18  holding a public hearing, we have decided to hold a

         19  public hearing.

         20                 I want to make something very clear,

         21  I'm not an adversary with the MTA or the TA, in

         22  fact, I have tremendous respect with the current

         23  President of the TA, Mr. Larry Reuter, and I really

         24  believe he is doing a yeoman's job with the Transit

         25  Authority and is turning things around.  I know that
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          2  he followed the great leader by the name of David

          3  Gunn, who I believe is the best that ever happened

          4  to the Transit Authority and really turned things

          5  around when he took hold, and he worked for David

          6  Gunn. Then when Gunn left during the interim we had

          7  somebody else, who I don't even remember his name

          8  that is how much of an impact he made on the system,

          9  and I believe at that point the system was going

         10  south, and thank God that some people at the MTA had

         11  enough brains to realize that we better bring back

         12  either Gunn or someone close enough to Gunn, and

         13  that is why they brought back Larry Reuter.  So I,

         14  this is not an issue with Larry Reuter or the TA.  I

         15  believe that this is an issue, and I think someone,

         16  some of the people might have made a mistake on this

         17  one and should have encouraged public hearings, at

         18  least, for the public to have input.

         19                 The public feels, when they see

         20  things like this taking place, they're very leery of

         21  government, and when they see a governmental agency

         22  deciding to do things without public hearings and

         23  the outcry from the newspapers in the community

         24  groups for the public hearings and they keep on

         25  saying, no, no, no.  That is when they get worried

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  because there may be something that they have up

          3  their sleeves.

          4                 So I hope, and I know Larry long

          5  enough, that he will be honest with us and be open

          6  with us and we can have that dialogue.  And that is

          7  the dialogue I want to have here and I want to keep

          8  it at that tone as a dialogue, not as a bashing

          9  session because I believe that Larry is an honest

         10  and honorable person, who will at least listen to

         11  us.  I have had an occasion with him where staff

         12  might have said to him, recommended different

         13  things, but when I got to him and spoke to him about

         14  it personally, he looked at it himself personally,

         15  reviewed it and he reversed staff's position.  So I

         16  respect him in that way, and I hope that you, Larry,

         17  that you would listen to us at the same time.

         18                 We have a little logistical, it's we

         19  don't have to have a public hearing on this change,

         20  but because there is about 45 people outside still

         21  that wants to testify here, as well, we're going to

         22  be asking, I know some people are not going to be

         23  too happy, but we're going to give you a few

         24  minutes, we're going to move into the other room,

         25  because the larger room has been freed up for us.
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          2  So if you want, just for a few minutes, we're just

          3  making a change.  Thank you.  A recess for a few

          4  minutes.

          5                 (Recess taken.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Come back to order

          7  again, and I'm sorry to have moved you from one room

          8  to another only because of the larger crowd that we

          9  have seen here, and we wanted to give everybody an

         10  opportunity to be in the room while we have this

         11  hearing taking place.

         12                 We're joined now by the Speaker,

         13  which I will turn this microphone over to the

         14  Speaker, and then we will continue by having Mr.

         15  Reuter come up so he can testify and we can ask him

         16  some questions.

         17                 Mr. Speaker.

         18                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  Yes, Mr. Reuter,

         19  since my remarks, why don't you come and take your

         20  seat, and if there is any staff that you want to

         21  bring up, please do so?

         22                 I want to thank the Chair, Noach Dear

         23  and the members of the Transportation Committee, and

         24  of course, the Transit Authority for coming today,

         25  because this is a meeting that I'm sorry is being
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          2  held in the first place.  It seems to me that I have

          3  been at demonstrations in Chinatown with literally

          4  thousands of people because the argument that was

          5  raised is that necessary repairs are going to be

          6  made to the Manhattan Bridge, which obviously no one

          7  objects to.  But it strikes me that there is

          8  something wrong if we're talking about a three or

          9  more year period to do something that took longer

         10  than it did to build the bridge itself in the first

         11  place.  And that kind of inconvenience should be

         12  avoided, and there has to be a better explanation

         13  than I hope that we're going to receive today as to

         14  why something like that has to happen at the expense

         15  of a very important part of our City.  And if any

         16  part of our City suffers, then we all suffer.

         17                 Today there is another demonstration

         18  with another several thousand people concerning why

         19  is it necessary to take train service that is

         20  already existing that ends at Queens Plaza, skip

         21  Queens Plaza, disrupt over 100,000 people in

         22  Brooklyn and Queens, and then be told that it wasn't

         23  necessary to have a public hearing because it was

         24  only temporary inconvenience.  One appears to be a

         25  temporary inconvenience, the other seems to be a
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          2  permanent inconvenience.

          3                 Now hopefully that this is just a

          4  problem of communication, and not a real problem of

          5  unnecessarily disturbing, disrupting, annoying,

          6  frightening New Yorkers who depend upon, what I

          7  consider to be, the best transportation system in

          8  the world.  And if anything, if we have anything to

          9  do with it on our end, we would certainly expand it

         10  and make it even better than it is today.

         11                 So Mr. Reuter, Mr. President, and the

         12  people that you brought with you, it isn't an

         13  explanation just for me and the members of the City

         14  Council that we're here for, but it's really an

         15  explanation to the millions of riders of our subway

         16  system who depend upon it to be taken swiftly and

         17  safely every day, who have put up with all kinds of

         18  annoyances and understand capital projects have to

         19  be done, but they don't have to be done in such a

         20  way as to make it for them impossible to go on with

         21  their lives in a safe and in a manner that doesn't

         22  unnecessarily disrupt them.

         23                 So we look forward very much to your

         24  explanation and to a full public hearing of what

         25  exactly is going on in at least two areas of our
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          2  City, Chinatown and Queens Plaza and Queens and

          3  Brooklyn, and what else we might be able to expect

          4  in the near future.

          5                 MR. REUTER: Thank you very much, Mr.

          6  Speaker.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, before we, I

          8  will take your testimony and then we will respond to

          9  that.

         10                 MR. REUTER:  Okay, if I could, I have

         11  a prepared testimony that I would like to read, and

         12  then sitting next to me is Peter Cafiaero, who works

         13  with us and we will be here to - - What is that?  I

         14  think it is on, isn't it?  Okay, all right, and we

         15  will be here to answer any questions that you may

         16  have of us. Okay?

         17                 If I could, though, I guess it is

         18  afternoon, good afternoon, Chairman Dear and also

         19  Mr. Speaker, and members of the Committee.  I'm glad

         20  to be here today, and as the Chairman mentioned, my

         21  name is Larry Reuter, and I'm the President of the

         22  MTA New York City Transit.  And I want to thank

         23  Chairman Dear for providing the opportunity to come

         24  here today to talk about what is going to be some of

         25  the most major changes scheduled in the subway
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          2  system in quite some time.

          3                 As you are aware, 2001 will bring

          4  major changes to subway service.  Some of the

          5  changes have long been anticipated and are anxiously

          6  awaited by our customers.  Others are the result of

          7  the New York City Department of Transportation's

          8  project to rehabilitate the Manhattan Bridge.  Taken

          9  together these changes will affect the rides of

         10  approximately one and a half million of our

         11  customers.

         12                 I would first like to discuss the

         13  service changes that will occur when we open the

         14  63rd Street Connector for full time subway service

         15  later this Fall.  The 63rd Street Connector, a $645

         16  million construction project discussed since the

         17  eighties, connects the 63rd Street Line with the

         18  Queens Boulevard Line, thereby providing much needed

         19  and long overdue relief to E and F riders who have

         20  experienced overcrowding for decades.

         21                 As proposed, when weekday service

         22  begins in the fall, F express trains from Queens

         23  will be permanently shifted to the 63rd Street

         24  Tunnel.  A new V train service will originate at

         25  Forest Hills- 71st Street Avenue and provide local
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          2  service along Queens Boulevard into Manhattan

          3  through the 53rd Street Tunnel.  E train service

          4  will not change and will continue to operate as an

          5  express on Queens Boulevard and enter Manhattan

          6  through the 53rd Street Tunnel.  Likewise, R train

          7  service will stay the same, operating as a Queens

          8  Boulevard local and entering Manhattan via the 60th

          9  Street Tunnel.  G service will be shortened to a new

         10  terminal at Court Square with transfers to the E, V

         11  and 7 lines.

         12                 The proposed 63rd Street Connector

         13  service plan relieves overcrowding on Queens

         14  Boulevard trains, the most crowded in our system,

         15  with a 20 percent increase in service between Queens

         16  and Manhattan.   The service plan distributes riders

         17  more evenly across the three tunnel routes,

         18  minimizes transfers for the majority of the

         19  customers and provides consistent F and G line

         20  routings at all times to minimize customer confusion

         21  over service patterns.

         22                 The service plan I have just outlined

         23  was the subject of a mandated MTA public hearing

         24  held in January 2001.  At that meeting and at many

         25  others I have attended, we have heard from our
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          2  riders about the proposed plan.  While many look

          3  forward to the substantial increase in service on

          4  Queens Boulevard and that Connector was built to

          5  provide, our proposed permanent northern terminal of

          6  Court Square for the G train has been protested

          7  vociferously.

          8                 Our proposal does end one- seat

          9  service between Brooklyn and Queens Boulevard on the

         10  G line, a service used by approximately 10,000

         11  riders a day, but it allows 475,000 more customers

         12  to benefit from less crowded and more frequent

         13  service between Queens and Manhattan.   Among those

         14  who share this benefit are current G customers who

         15  travel to Manhattan.

         16                 Whereas today they often find the E

         17  and F trains that they must transfer to at Queens

         18  Plaza or Court Square too crowded to get on, our

         19  proposed service plan would provide them with less

         20  crowded transfer opportunities.  And because our

         21  proposal also increases the frequency of G service,

         22  all G line customers will have additional and more

         23  reliable service.

         24                 Having said all this, I can report

         25  that pursuant to Governor Pataki and the MTA
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          2  Chairman's  direction, we're reviewing the proposed

          3  plan to see what would be required to operate the G

          4  train through to Queens Boulevard, and whether or

          5  not it is possible to do so.

          6                 At the outset of my remarks I said

          7  that some of the subway service changes expected

          8  this year were long- awaited and some weren't.  The

          9  changes necessitated by the New York City Department

         10  of Transportation's Manhattan Bridge Rehabilitation

         11  project clearly falls into the latter category.

         12                 As you know, there are two sets of

         13  tracks on the Manhattan Bridge.  One set sends

         14  subway service from Brooklyn, specifically the 4th

         15  Avenue and Brighten corridors, to the 6th Avenue

         16  Line in Manhattan, while the other set send service

         17  to the Broadway Line in Manhattan.  In between the

         18  two sets of tracks are three lanes for vehicular

         19  traffic.  In 1984, New York City Department of

         20  Transportation began rehabilitating the Bridge, and

         21  in 1998 closed the Broadway tracks to subway

         22  service.  Since then, all subway service over the

         23  Bride has traveled over the 6th Avenue Line, with

         24  one very brief exception, while the Broadway side of

         25  the Bridge was rehabilitated.
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          2                 Early this summer, subway service

          3  will once again travel over the Broadway Line tracks

          4  while New York City Department of Transportation

          5  rehabilitates the 6th Avenue side of the Bridge. New

          6  York City Department of Transportation has committed

          7  to returning both sets of tracks to us in 2004,

          8  thereby allowing consistent, full subway service

          9  over the Bridge to both Broadway and 6th Avenue for

         10  the first time in over 20 years.

         11                 The service changes necessitated by

         12  the Bridge Rehabilitation project significantly

         13  affect our B, D, and Q routes. First, because the

         14  Broadway tracks lead to Queens, the B and D cannot

         15  provide uninterrupted service between Brooklyn and

         16  Upper Manhattan and the Bronx.  To maintain B and D

         17  service between the three boroughs, the trains must

         18  run in two segments.  Thus, B and D trains in the

         19  Bronx and Upper Manhattan will run as they do today,

         20  making all the same stops until 34th Street- Herald

         21  Square where they will connect with the trains that

         22  will continue through to Brooklyn.

         23                 To avoid confusion at 34th Street-

         24  Herald Square, service on the Manhattan to Brooklyn

         25  segment of these routes is being renamed:  The
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          2  Brooklyn B will be known as the W; the Brooklyn Q,

          3  which is the Brighten Express, will be represented

          4  by a Q in a diamond shaped background; and the

          5  Brooklyn D, which is the Brighten local, will be

          6  identified by a Q in a circular background.

          7                 While these renamed trains will

          8  continue to make all the same stops in Brooklyn that

          9  they do today, their Manhattan stops must change

         10  because they can no longer access the 6th Avenue

         11  Line on the Manhattan side of the Bridge.

         12                 These services, the W, Q express and

         13  Q local will enter Manhattan on the Broadway Line

         14  express tracks with their first stop at Canal

         15  Street.  They will continue north in Manhattan

         16  making stops at Broadway Line express stations:

         17  14th Street- Union Square; 34th Street- Herald

         18  Square where customers can transfer for B or D

         19  trains for through service to Upper Manhattan and

         20  the Bronx, and 42nd Street- Times Square.  Both Q

         21  services will then travel to their terminal stop at

         22  57th Street and Seventh Avenue.  After Times Square,

         23  the W will follow the N route, beginning with 49th

         24  Street Broadway, traveling to its new terminal at

         25  Ditmars Boulevard, Astoria.
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          2                 The W train will operate as a peak

          3  direction express in Queens, to Manhattan in the

          4  morning and from Manhattan in the afternoons and

          5  evenings.

          6                 While some B, D, and Q customers will

          7  have to change trains at 34th Street- Herald Square

          8  when we are forced to switch the tracks we use over

          9  the Manhattan Bridge, and while all Brooklyn B, D

         10  and Q customers will have to use different Manhattan

         11  stations, perhaps the most significant impact of the

         12  track switch concerns the Grand Street Station.

         13                 Because the Broadway Line tracks on

         14  which we will have to run lead to Canal Street,

         15  there is no way our trains can enter Grand Street

         16  from Brooklyn.  It is physically impossible. But the

         17  Grand Street Station will remain open.  Since the

         18  only way trains can get into Grand Street is from

         19  the north, to continue to provide service to Grand

         20  Street, we will run a shuttle train from the

         21  Broadway- Lafayette Station to Grand Street.

         22                 This shuttle will operate 24 hours, 7

         23  days a week, will allow people other connect with

         24  the F train on the 6th Avenue Line.  It will make

         25  five round trips an hour, which is the maximum
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          2  frequency that the track configuration will permit.

          3                 Customers who now travel to Grand

          4  Street from Brooklyn will, if they stay on the same

          5  trains in Brooklyn, travel to Canal Street.  Many of

          6  these customers will find themselves closer to their

          7  destination then they were when they could only get

          8  to Grand Street.  And here I would note that prior

          9  to the last track switch on the Bridge in 1988, the

         10  trains that serve Grand Street today only stopped at

         11  Canal Street, the station to which they are now

         12  running.  At the time of the last track switch,

         13  ridership at the Grand Street went from 2,200 a day

         14  to 15,000 a day, and we expect the ridership to

         15  similarly reverse when the tracks switch again.

         16                 Customers who want other be in the

         17  immediate vicinity of Grand Street can, at the Canal

         18  Street Station, transfer to an M, J or Z train and

         19  travel one stop to the Bowery Station, two blocks

         20  away from the Grand Street.

         21                 While riders to Grand Street have

         22  several options to reach their destinations, the

         23  businesses in the immediate vicinity of the station

         24  will, undoubtedly, be affected.  These businesses

         25  have developed and grown in response to the
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          2  increased pedestrian traffic,  which accompanied the

          3  last track switch.  As riders who used to travel to

          4  Canal Street were forced to travel to Grand Street,

          5  new businesses opened while others expanded.

          6  Unfortunately, because the tracks which lead to

          7  Grand Street from the south will not be available

          8  for the next three years, we can no longer deliver

          9  the train loads of people the area is used to

         10  receiving.

         11                 Thus, to address the needs of both

         12  displaced customers and the businesses around the

         13  Grand Street Station, we will run shuttle buses to

         14  the Grand Street station from the Canal Street

         15  Station.  This bus will run 24 hours a day, 7 days a

         16  week, and as frequently as every six minutes during

         17  peak periods.  It will be free to customers using

         18  their MetroCard transfer.

         19                 The nature of the work that needs to

         20  be done on the Manhattan Bridge provides us with

         21  few, if any, service options. However, in the course

         22  of the many meetings we have had, we have heard many

         23  suggestions about how to better serve the Grand

         24  Street Station, all of which have been reviewed.  As

         25  requested, we have looked at running the M as an
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          2  express in Brooklyn, as well as the M in Brooklyn

          3  for a longer span, so as to provide more service to

          4  the Bowery Station.  Neither suggestion makes good

          5  sense; the first doesn't work because of limited

          6  track capacity, and the second doesn't make sense

          7  because riders can get to the Bowery Station more

          8  quickly by traveling to Canal Street and

          9  transferring to an M, J or Z train.

         10                 We have also been asked to extend the

         11  rail shuttle that will travel between Broadway-

         12  Lafayette Street and Grand Street to West 4th

         13  Street.  Until the 63rd Street Connector opens for

         14  full- time service this Fall, we do not have the

         15  track capacity to do this.  However, I have

         16  committed numerous times to seriously look at this

         17  extension once it is physically possible to do so.

         18  As I have repeatedly stated, we will continue to

         19  evaluate all realistic suggestions that are

         20  presented to us.

         21                 With few, if any options, the biggest

         22  challenge we face is to make sure that the 600,000

         23  customers whose subway service will be significantly

         24  affected know how to adjust their trips in the face

         25  of these changes.
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          2                 Since we know that it is not

          3  effective to communicate service changes to our

          4  customers months before they occur, our efforts to

          5  date have had us speaking with elected officials,

          6  community boards and civic organizations.  We have

          7  written to all elected officials and community

          8  boards in Brooklyn, Manhattan and the Bronx,

          9  explaining the service changes and offering to meet

         10  with anyone in any forum they propose.

         11                 Thus far, we have made presentations

         12  to the District Service Cabinets in Brooklyn,

         13  Manhattan and the Bronx.  I attended a public

         14  hearing that Brooklyn Borough President Golden

         15  convened at his Borough Board meeting, as well as a

         16  community forum in Chinatown convened by the Lower

         17  East Side BID.  We have also accepted all

         18  invitations we have received from community boards

         19  and elected officials to present the service

         20  changes.  We will continue to schedule and attend

         21  such meetings throughout the Spring.

         22                 In late May, about a month before the

         23  service changes will occur, we will turn our focus

         24  to the 600,000 customers whose rides will be

         25  affected.  We plan an extensive multi- language
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          2  public information campaign.

          3                 Posters will appear in subway

          4  stations and on- board trains.  Announcement will

          5  also be made on trains.  A brochure in English,

          6  Spanish, Chinese and Russian detailing the changes

          7  and providing travel guidance will be available

          8  system- wide.

          9                 These brochures, as well as all the

         10  information we put out, will contain the hotline

         11  number we are establishing to answer customers'

         12  questions about the service changes.  Multi lingual

         13  assistance will be provided by accessing this number

         14  as well.

         15                 We have also offered to visit large

         16  employers and institutions whose employees are

         17  affected by the changes.  We are prepared to staff

         18  information tables and provide information travel

         19  planning at such events.  And we will be doing the

         20  same thing in affected stations.  We will have staff

         21  out at affected B, D and Q stations weeks before the

         22  changes take place  Our goal is to place a brochure

         23  in the hands of all who travel on these routes so

         24  that the individual customers are aware of what will

         25  be happening and are aware of the new travel options
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          2  they have.

          3                 We also plan information tables at

          4  major 6th Avenue Line stations where B, D, and Q

          5  service will no longer be available. These tables

          6  will be staffed by personnel who will assist

          7  customers in designing the best trip for them once

          8  the service changes.  We will be able to provide

          9  this assistance in multi- languages also.

         10                 We will also use paid advertisements,

         11  again in multi- languages.  In addition to citywide

         12  newspapers, we will especially focus on local and

         13  ethnic news outlets to get the word out.  And we

         14  will be buying time on radio stations to further

         15  communicate our message.

         16                 We know we have a huge task before

         17  us.  While there is nothing we can do to prevent the

         18  track switch from occurring, the Manhattan Bridge

         19  must be rehabilitated, we can and will make sure our

         20  customers know what is happening and know how to

         21  navigate the new service.

         22                 And now I'm happy to answer any

         23  questions you may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes, Mr. Speaker.

         25                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  Just before I turn
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          2  it over to the Chairperson and others who will have

          3  much more detailed questions, the two problems that

          4  I would like you to address quickly, is, first of

          5  all, the first concern on Grand Street is why is it

          6  taking so long to make these repairs, and could you

          7  please explain that?

          8                 MR. REUTER:  I think, the real answer

          9  to that, Mr. Speaker, is you have to ask the City

         10  Department of Transportation, they're doing the

         11  work.  We're being kicked off the Bridge by City

         12  DOT.  We have looked at their schedule, their

         13  schedule has penalties in it for the contractor and

         14  also incentives, they have to do major

         15  rehabilitation work on the Bridge.  They better

         16  could answer that question, but we have had our

         17  engineers sit down with them, because we also want

         18  to shorten it as much as possible, we think they

         19  have shortened it as good as it can be done with the

         20  incentives in the contract.  We don't think they can

         21  do it much quicker than three years.

         22                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  I will be bringing

         23  City DOT in. But to your knowledge, what is the

         24  work?

         25                 MR. REUTER:  It's a major
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          2  rehabilitation structurally of the Bridge.  They're

          3  actually going to have to remove part of the

          4  supports on the roadway as well as under the track

          5  and actually do a structural rehabilitation of the

          6  Bridge, major construction work.

          7                 And, Mr. Speaker, as I mentioned in

          8  my testimony, this has really been going on now

          9  since 1984.

         10                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  I know that.

         11                 MR. REUTER:  We have lost half of

         12  this Bridge for the last 20, 15 years now.  We

         13  really would like to see this work done and

         14  completed once and for all so we can get the whole

         15  Bridge back, because ultimately we will be able to

         16  provide even more service, because we will have both

         17  sets of those tracks on the Bridge available.   That

         18  we plan, we hope to have, in three years under their

         19  schedule.

         20                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  And then there

         21  seems to be discrepancy on the other end, on the

         22  Queens Plaza end, where you say that 10,000

         23  customers are affected and others have indicated

         24  100,000 customers are affected.

         25                 MR. REUTER:  Well what they're, well,
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          2  it's really not, I think it's semantics of what

          3  you're saying.  There are close to 100,000 G train

          4  users, but there are only 10,000 that go on the G

          5  train towards the Queens Boulevard Line.  The other

          6  G trains come down into Brooklyn.  Those people are

          7  actually going to have more service.  They're going

          8  to have, we're putting on more trains in the rush

          9  hour for them, so they're going to have better

         10  service.

         11                 It's those customers that now will

         12  have to go through a transfer that will exist at

         13  Court Square to get to the Queens Boulevard service,

         14  which now they can access directly. Those 10,000

         15  will lose that direct connection, they will have to

         16  walk through a 460- foot passageway for transfer, to

         17  get there. But, in the end, they will also have

         18  better service, because right now they're

         19  transferring in Queens Boulevard onto the E and F,

         20  which are really over packed, crowded trains.  But

         21  once we do the 63rd Street Connector and we add 20

         22  percent more service, they're actually going to have

         23  more room on the trains when they try to get on them

         24  at the transfer location.

         25                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  Is the alternative
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          2  that you had discussed that you said you are

          3  considering, will that affect that at all?

          4                 MR. REUTER:  What we're considering,

          5  let me give you just a quick history, if I could, on

          6  the G train?  The whole 63rd Street Connection,

          7  which affects the G train, has been a project that

          8  has been studied for about 20 years.  Actually, as

          9  the Chairman mentioned, I was here back in the

         10  eighties as well, it was a project we looked at in

         11  the seventies and eighties to determine how best to

         12  relieve the Queens Boulevard overcrowding problem.

         13  And the solution that was picked is the one that is

         14  being built right now that started 10 years ago.

         15  And at that time, the decision was made that the

         16  trains would stop at Court Square.  There was an

         17  option looked at that would extend the trains

         18  further, but it was too expensive and it was ruled

         19  out because it was too expensive to extend the G

         20  train further.

         21                 What we're now trying to do, is in

         22  fact, put 15 pounds of potato in a 10- pound bag.

         23  We're out there actually running tests to see if I

         24  can run more trains through the interlocking and

         25  through the switch assembly out there that we think
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          2  we can run.  We're trying everything we can, we're

          3  trying not to impact the people, and that is what

          4  we're looking at, but I can't - -

          5                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  When will you know?

          6                 MR. REUTER:  We will probably know

          7  later this month or early next month.  Okay, the

          8  issue was going to go to the MTA Board this month,

          9  it's not going now until next month, so we really

         10  have a reprieve as we continue to study that

         11  evaluation.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

         13  much, Larry, for your testimony.  And I want to also

         14  acknowledge the fact that you had some foresight in

         15  naming some, two trains that I'm interested in and I

         16  think the country is.  One is, through our new

         17  President, and you pronounced it very well, the W,

         18  and since you did this before he became President,

         19  and I see that maybe this is an omen for our next

         20  Mayor that starts with a V as well.  So I'm glad

         21  that you had some sense, some smart sense to name

         22  these trains those letters.

         23                 The issue probably here more than

         24  anything else is, of course, the idea of the public

         25  hearing, which is interesting. You're ready to spend
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          2  all kinds of money, you have been to every community

          3  group, you have been berated probably in other

          4  public places, and you have been before every body

          5  that you can, and then when inviting you, and in

          6  fact, you're encouraging us, you know, for more

          7  invitations.

          8                 But my questions is, why hold back in

          9  a sense, and why not have just, have the public

         10  hearing, what was the big issue about having that

         11  public hearing?

         12                 MR. REUTER:  Well, let's answer it

         13  first in two parts.  We did have a public hearing on

         14  the G train, the 63rd Street Connector, we had that

         15  in July.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

         17                 MR. REUTER:  All right, so we held a

         18  public hearing on that one.

         19                 On the service that affects the

         20  Manhattan Bridge, the decision was made, it was

         21  really a policy decision made by the MTA Board that

         22  because it was temporary, it was only three years

         23  and it was a project not even being controlled by

         24  us, it was being controlled by elsewhere, that we

         25  did not, by policy, need to have a public hearing,
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          2  because that is the way the law read.

          3                 In doing so what we recommended was,

          4  and as we have said in this and you said in your

          5  testimony, we're affecting 600,000 riders.  So we

          6  said, well, we're not going to have a public

          7  hearing, but we have got to get out and really get

          8  the information out.  We have actually conducted

          9  over 20 some odd meetings on the Manhattan Bridge to

         10  date.  I mean we are going everywhere explaining

         11  that.  You're going to hear more about the Manhattan

         12  Bridge in May and June than you're probably ever

         13  going to want to hear once we start putting

         14  information out.

         15                 But it really was a policy decision

         16  not to have one because it was not required, but

         17  again, we have been out trying to talk to everybody

         18  and explain to them.  And what we have said to

         19  people at the meetings, the meetings if you have

         20  gone to it, another public hearing of ours, the

         21  public hearing is pretty much what we explain our

         22  service plan and then people just kind of give

         23  comments, and we don't respond to them.   At the

         24  meetings we have gone, we have actually told them

         25  why their suggestions don't work or that we will
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          2  look at them.  So they have been very much more give

          3  and take, and we have had better meetings, I think,

          4  with people to explain what the issues are.  But it

          5  really was a policy decision, Mr. Chair, that was

          6  made.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I understand that,

          8  and I think that hit a raw nerve with many people,

          9  just the idea of it, you know, that you can do

         10  everything you want, but that reason not to have a

         11  public hearing, even though you're doing the same

         12  thing basically going out there.  But the fact of

         13  not having a public hearing, I think, it was a

         14  mistake, and I, you know, hope that when you do in

         15  the future make some changes, temporary, hope not,

         16  that we decide we should go the public hearing

         17  route, just the fact that let the public be a part

         18  of it, you have nothing to hide.

         19                 Now, with regard to, I think you

         20  added something new that was not mentioned at any of

         21  the other hearings, that was the shuttle bus service

         22  that you're planning on having with the G?

         23                 MR. REUTER:  Yes, we actually did

         24  mention that at the meeting with the Chinatown BID

         25  and at our Board meeting that one of the suggestions
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          2  made was to do shuttle bus service from Grand Street

          3  to Canal, and we have said that we're going to do

          4  that, and that is now part of our plan.

          5                 One of the things that we have to do,

          6  which we mentioned, we have to work with City DOT

          7  with traffic, because that is a very congested area.

          8    And in order for buses to get through there, but

          9  we're doing that right now with DOT, and when the

         10  Bridge starts you will see shuttle buses running 24

         11  hours, 7 days a week.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.  Now, with

         13  regard to the transfer on Court Square, will

         14  transfer to the E, V and 7 lines, right?

         15                 MR. REUTER:  Right.  That is on the G

         16  train now to the E and the F.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

         18                 MR. REUTER:  That is correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Will they have a

         20  free transfer there?

         21                 MR. REUTER:  There is really two

         22  different transfers.  The E and F is truly free,

         23  it's through a passageway, and actually coming here

         24  on the subway it's shorter than your passageway

         25  downstairs for the 4 and 5.  It's 460- foot
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          2  passageway that exists right now and it's free.

          3  They're also going to have a transfer that we're

          4  building right now to the 7 Line for the first time.

          5    You will actually have to walk out onto a street

          6  and up a stair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Why?  They will

          8  have a block to walk or something like that, right?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  It's not even a block,

         10  it's really across the street.  When you come out of

         11  the subway station, that one stairs, you walk right

         12  across a two- lane street and up the subway stairs.

         13  That is something new we're adding as part of this

         14  project as well.  So you will have that transfer as

         15  well.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And then the, how

         17  will the G riders access trains on Broadway in

         18  Manhattan?

         19                 MR. REUTER:  On Broadway?  They would

         20  really do it by the R train now, which runs out

         21  there currently.  Okay, it's a local service that

         22  runs on Queens Boulevard, they would be able to

         23  transfer to the R train and take it into Broadway as

         24  well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.  With regard
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          2  to the W train that you're talking about running on

          3  peak hours in Queens to Manhattan, in the morning

          4  from Manhattan, and in the afternoons and the

          5  evenings, this is, well, this is the old B Line.

          6                 MR. REUTER:  Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  There will be no

          8  mid- day service there?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  Say that again, now?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  There will be, it

         11  will be just rush hour service.  What about mid- day

         12  service?

         13                 MR. REUTER:  Now you're talking,

         14  which line now?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  The W train,

         16  between - -

         17                 MR. REUTER:  Do you want to explain,

         18  Peter?

         19                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Yes.

         20                 MR. REUTER:  Let me have Peter

         21  explain what is actually running there, if we could,

         22  okay?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.

         24                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Well the W will run

         25  to, from what is now the B Line in Brooklyn up the
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          2  Broadway Express Line, and then along with the N

          3  train, as President Reuter said, to Astoria

          4  throughout the day on weekdays, from the morning

          5  rush hour through to after the evening rush hour.

          6  And it will run similar to the way the Number 7 and

          7  the Number 6 run, it will run express in Astoria

          8  southbound in the morning till about noon, and then

          9  change directions immediately and begin running

         10  express northbound in the other direction it will be

         11  local in Astoria.  But from Brooklyn and Manhattan

         12  it will be throughout the day until late in the

         13  evening.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Now there will not

         15  be, the mid day service will not happen between

         16  Nassau Street to Lower Manhattan; is that correct?

         17                 MR. REUTER:  Correct.

         18                 MR. CAFIAERO:  It's between Nassau

         19  Street and South Brooklyn.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

         21                 MR. CAFIAERO:  The N will stay as it

         22  is now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Now, that was

         24  obviously touched upon about the extent of the work

         25  on the Bridge, I know that your working closely with
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          2  them, and I know that they're trying to push this.

          3  How long do you, realistically, do you believe,

          4  we're talking about that we're going to be out of

          5  service on the Bridge?

          6                 MR. REUTER:  I think that the

          7  schedule that they have got right now, Mr. Chair, is

          8  realistic.  I think it is going to be roughly the

          9  three years that is in their schedule.

         10                 We just went to another project with

         11  them on Williamsburg that was done on time.  Okay, I

         12  think this project has been going on a long time, as

         13  we have said.  I think they really know the extent

         14  of the damages, they know what needs to be done, and

         15  by putting both the penalties and incentives in the

         16  contract, you know, I think there is a very high

         17  likelihood they will be able to finish this within

         18  three years.

         19                 And at that time we just want to keep

         20  saying, well, actually, finally get all our tracks

         21  back on that Bridge, and we will be able to serve

         22  both Canal and Grand Street once that happens.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Now, obviously

         24  there is a lot of resistance on this and particular

         25  the Chinatown community feels that they are going to
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          2  be hurt by this, and if you look at the map, I guess

          3  you're - -

          4                 MR. REUTER:  Right here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Now this is the

          6  concern, it is not only one community, it involves

          7  many communities, people from Brooklyn coming into

          8  Lower Manhattan - -

          9                 MR. REUTER: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: - -  and what

         11  happens is that the two points that you have over

         12  there, that that community is basically going to be

         13  underserved with regard to any type of train

         14  service, and people traveling there are going to be

         15  not able, you know, are not going to be directed

         16  there, so you have to look at the economic point of

         17  view also from store owners that have invested

         18  money, and merchants and everything else that are

         19  going to be hurt the fact that the whole area is not

         20  going to be serviced because of this change.

         21                 MR. REUTER:  Yes.  This map, Mr.

         22  Dear, is pretty much a blowup.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  That is the one,

         24  exactly, so your talking about Grand Street and the

         25  Canal Street, that is right, from there to the Canal
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          2  Street, right.  And that if you take a circle, and

          3  that entire area is obviously going to be affected

          4  by this change.

          5                 MR. REUTER:  That is right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What are you doing

          7  to mitigate the difficulty that these people are

          8  going to have?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  What we're doing is

         10  really two things that we have mentioned.  One is,

         11  we're going to be running the shuttle, okay, that is

         12  going to be running from Broadway- Lafayette to

         13  Grand.  So people can take the B, D and Q and

         14  transfer.  They can also transfer to J, M and Z to

         15  go to Bowery and walk, and we're also adding the

         16  shuttle bus, so that if people want to get off at

         17  Canal Street and take the shuttle bus, the shuttle

         18  bus will take them over to Grand Street.

         19                 We think we are doing basically

         20  everything that we can do to get the customers that

         21  serve the Grand Street area right now.  Remember, we

         22  have lost the tracks from Brooklyn, so without those

         23  tracks we're really having to do with what we got,

         24  and we can only serve Grand Street from the north,

         25  and because it is not designed to be a terminal, it
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          2  really has to operate as a stub in operation.  So

          3  the trains will, what we call ping- pong back and

          4  forth.

          5                 So we're providing shuttle trains and

          6  shuttle buses to get people to the Grand Street area

          7  so they can have access to this station and to the

          8  business around there.

          9                 But I think you're right, the

         10  businesses, we have admitted it, the businesses are

         11  going to be impacted.  I mean many of these

         12  businesses have grown up, you know, because of the

         13  flip that used to be - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  That is right.

         15                 MR. REUTER:  Remember there was no

         16  Canal Street now for 15 years  and then, you know,

         17  it shifted here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

         19                 MR. REUTER:  Now what is going to

         20  happen, you know, they're going to shift back to

         21  Canal.  Our study showed it is roughly two- thirds

         22  of the people live or work closer to Canal Street.

         23  So many of those people probably would not go to

         24  Grand Street in the future any way.  But we're

         25  providing all the service that we can with the
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          2  shuttle trains and the buses to encourage people to

          3  go there.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I understand that

          5  you do have the access and you have the capacity on

          6  Nassau and the Monteque Station, and I understand

          7  that you're using the Bowery Station. Why are we not

          8  looking at that?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  We have service going to

         10  the Bowery right now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.

         12                 MR. REUTER:  The J, Z and M go there

         13  and people can use those.  Right now the M is not

         14  even at capacity, so we have capacity and people can

         15  transfer to those lines and go to the Bowery, as

         16  well.

         17                 One of the issues that have been

         18  raised before was to run express to M, run M express

         19  trains to Bowery.  In order to do that it's a track

         20  capacity, we would have to eliminate N trains to do

         21  that.  N trains are far more crowded than the M, so

         22  we would hurt more people in Brooklyn to do that.

         23                 So we think we have got a plan that

         24  does as best as we can with what we have got to work

         25  with.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  The problem with

          3  that is you only have part- time service, that is

          4  not on weekends and during - -

          5                 MR. REUTER:  The J runs there all the

          6  time, the M is basically a peak hour service only.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right

          8                 MR. REUTER:  That is correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  So can we - -  go

         10  ahead.

         11                 MR. REUTER: But if right now, because

         12  of other work that the City is doing on the

         13  Williamsburg Bridge, on the weekends and after hours

         14  were impacted by geos on the Williamsburg Bridge, we

         15  could not even run the train 60 percent of the time,

         16  there is no track capacity, because right now we

         17  have to curtail the J train on weekends and nights

         18  too.  So we have looked at those issues.  There is

         19  other work that is going on in the City on the

         20  Williamsburg Bridge that is affecting that train

         21  right now.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Do there idea

         23  also, and also one of the train stations that you're

         24  doing over the Grand Street, obviously, you're doing

         25  over, right, the Grand Street Station is being done
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          2  over?

          3                 MR. REUTER:  Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Which the B, D and

          5  Q are going to skip.  Why, that is another thing,

          6  and then you tell me about the Williamsburg Bridge

          7  under construction, why can't we coordinate this?

          8  Because this reminds me when the City does a

          9  repaving, a resurfacing, a reconstruction, and they

         10  put a beautiful street down, the next day the

         11  telephone company decides, oh, well, we forgot to

         12  put in another wire there, or we have to run this

         13  system, why can't we have better coordination so

         14  people are not going to be impacted in such a way?

         15                 MR. REUTER:  We actually have tried a

         16  lot of coordination with them, but I think in all

         17  fairness when you look at this, if you remember the

         18  history, and again, having been here in the mid-

         19  eighties when this was the issue, what happened to

         20  the bridges was really due to years of neglect,  the

         21  maintenance on the bridges, and the bridges all got

         22  to a state of near collapse, at one time when they

         23  needed major structural work to fix them.  So the

         24  City has been involved in fixing the Williamsburg,

         25  the Manhattan, the Brooklyn, and the Williamsburg
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          2  Bridge, and we're just seeing those projects now

          3  starting to get near completion.  So they really got

          4  to the point, similar to what the subway system had

          5  reached in the seventies and early eighties, okay,

          6  when it was near collapse, I think the bridges were

          7  there and the City got forced to do those issues to

          8  fix them.  I don't think they had the opportunity of

          9  phasing them out any longer they have done.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And I just, before

         11  I turn it over to questions from my colleagues, I'm

         12  again, I'm concern, it's not just the Chinatown

         13  community, it's people going and coming, and it is a

         14  larger community that people participate, the

         15  numbers that they're saying, and even if it's, like

         16  you say, it's a one area, one area of people, who is

         17  going to help them out when some of them could go

         18  out of business, some could lose a lot of money.

         19  And, you know, we're not in the business to go out

         20  and help them, but we still have to help them the

         21  main to retain their businesses, and that is the

         22  problem when we do major reconstruction, anything

         23  else, we have to have that long- run we have to

         24  think of these people, because they are the bread

         25  and butter of our communities.
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          2                 You know, I have to tell you, if you

          3  look at Lower Manhattan, it's nice that all kinds of

          4  real estate prices are going up in Manhattan, but

          5  the reason are for it is because there are strong

          6  and stable communities.  The Chinatown community has

          7  grown from a few blocks to a larger area and that

          8  has a ripple affect on Lower Manhattan, other parts

          9  of Manhattan, because people like to see progress.

         10  So it is wrong on the backs of one group to hurt

         11  them as a result of other's benefit, and here I must

         12  tell you, I'm insisting that you look at something

         13  with the M train, and my staff, I hope they can sit

         14  down with your staff, would hope to sit down and if

         15  we cannot agree on staff level, I will sit down with

         16  you, because I know you would take a look at it, to

         17  see what we can do to increase that service.

         18  Because my staff is insisting that you do have room

         19  for it, and if we could take a look at it, we would

         20  like you should take a hard look at it.

         21                 MR. REUTER:  We will gladly sit down

         22  with your staff and show them these issues, okay?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Council Member McCaffrey.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you
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          2  very much, Mr. Chairman.  President Reuter, when the

          3  hearing was done on the G train what was the

          4  economic analysis that was attached to that hearing?

          5                 MR. REUTER:  When you say economic

          6  analysis, Mr. McCaffrey, I'm not sure?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Was there

          8  an economic impact?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  Oh, you mean way back

         10  when the decision was made?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Yes.

         12                 MR. REUTER:  Yes, it was several, I

         13  think at the time several hundred million dollars

         14  about 10 or 15 years ago to do that extension, which

         15  obviously - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  But in

         17  terms of the hearing that was done on the G, was

         18  there any economic analysis that was put out that

         19  was the basis for the proposed decision?

         20                 MR. REUTER:  No, not that I know of.

         21  I mean, when you say that, I just need me to be

         22  clear, you know, when the project went through the

         23  federal planning process in EIS.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  No, I'm

         25  talking about the Court Square proposal here right
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          2  now.

          3                 MR. REUTER:  Right.  That did in the

          4  nineties, it went through that, in the nineties.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Right, you

          6  said there was a hearing done last year.

          7                 MR. REUTER:  No the hearing was done

          8  this year on the service plan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  On the

         10  service.  Was there an economic impact analysis that

         11  was done?

         12                 MR. REUTER:  Not at that hearing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  So there

         14  was nothing there?

         15                 MR. REUTER:  No, there was something

         16  10 years ago when the project - -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Right.

         18  Can anybody from your agency tell me about what is

         19  happening at Queens Plaza these days?

         20                 MR. REUTER:  When you say what is

         21  happening?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Economic

         23  Development, does anybody know?

         24                 MR. REUTER:  I - -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I suggest
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          2  that the agency take out a subscription to Cranes,

          3  for example, and to read about MetLife, which is - -

          4                 MR. REUTER:  Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY: - -  quite

          6  frankly not sure that it wants to go to Queens Plaza

          7  because of the transportation problems.  But there

          8  was no consideration given of that; was there?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  No, actually there was

         10  consideration 10 years ago of all of the  - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I'm not

         12  talking about 10 years ago.

         13                 MR. REUTER: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I'm

         15  talking about when the hearing was done and the

         16  service issues were being addressed now.  Was there

         17  any economic analysis done or a consideration given

         18  at that time?

         19                 MR. REUTER:  When you say economic,

         20  there was a consideration given to the affect of the

         21  ridership.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  What is

         23  the impact going to be on the development of Queens

         24  Plaza?

         25                 MR. REUTER:  The affected
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          2  development?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Yes.

          4                 MR. REUTER:  To get more service.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  How do you

          6  know that, you did not do an economic analysis?

          7                 MR. REUTER:  No, because we're doing,

          8  because the service we're providing will - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  No, no,

         10  no, just answer my questions, Mr. President, okay?

         11                 MR. REUTER:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  You're

         13  very bright and talented man, so just answer my

         14  questions.  Was there any economic analysis done

         15  back on the impact of Queens Plaza?

         16                 MR. REUTER:  No, there is no real, I

         17  know what you're talking about, not to that detail.

         18  There was economic studies done, but, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Okay,

         20  years ago, but nothing that was current.  Does

         21  anybody know what is happening at Queens Plaza?

         22                 MR. REUTER: Oh, yes, we know what is

         23  happening, yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Can

         25  someone describe that to me from your shop?
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          2                 MR. REUTER:  Peter, could probably

          3  describe it, right?

          4                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Well you will have to

          5  define what your - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:   Yes,

          7  sure.  Short of some of the other questions, Mr.

          8  Chairman, I will ask my question.

          9                 MR. CAFIAERO:  We know that

         10  development has been proposed there, and some of it

         11  has occurred as at Court Square and other parts of

         12  the Long Island City area.  In fact, the MTA did an

         13  entire Long Island City study in recent years,

         14  looked at the entire area and we have been

         15  participating in that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  And how

         17  does that relate to this proposal in terms of the G

         18  service aspect?

         19                 MR. CAFIAERO:  This proposal has been

         20  very consistently stated throughout the years that

         21  the entire - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  It's a 10-

         23  year ago assumption.  You see I was around 10 years

         24  ago.

         25                 MR. CAFIAERO:  I understand that and
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          2  we have been around - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  So tell me

          4  what you have that is current?

          5                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Okay, it continues to

          6  be updated and current - -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  But there

          8  is nothing that is current out there.  For example,

          9  tell me what is going to happen, what are the three

         10  or four developments that are likely to potentially

         11  to take place at Queens Plaza after the zoning

         12  changes is done?

         13                 MR. REUTER:  I don't think we know.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  You don't

         15  know.  Well that is really because you have not done

         16  your homework in the area, quite frankly.

         17                 MR. REUTER:  Well we know there is

         18  stuff going on, but the real issue is the project

         19  conceived 10 years ago - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  The real

         21  issue is at the present you have not done your

         22  homework.  Because the Chair admonished you, you

         23  know, it would be good to do public hearings. You

         24  have not come and met with elected officials.

         25                 MR. REUTER:  We have had a public
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          2  hearing on this.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  No, no,

          4  no, you have not done an economic analysis on this

          5  stuff.

          6                 MR. REUTER:  We have done an economic

          7  analysis in the past on these, we have looked at

          8  ridership, and it is still consistent with all those

          9  projections.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  No, no,

         11  no, you're talking about ridership.

         12                 MR. REUTER:  But that is what we're

         13  in the business- -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Have you

         15  talked to any of the potential developers about what

         16  they look at this area and that without the G

         17  service?

         18                 MR. REUTER:  Yes, we have, they have

         19  talked to MTA Real Estate and our people all the

         20  time.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Which one

         22  of those folks did you talk to?

         23                 MR. REUTER:  We have talked,

         24  obviously, we have talked to the City Corp out there

         25  that is doing work, we have talked to MetLife and
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          2  others out there.  We talk to them all the time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Right.

          4                 MR. REUTER:  But all of their plans

          5  are still consistent with what we're doing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Why are

          7  you doing the connection of the No. 7 Line rather

          8  than Citibank?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  What is that?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Why are

         11  you doing the connection - -

         12                 MR. REUTER: Well we would like

         13  Citibank to actually do a better connection than

         14  what we're doing in the future.  Okay, but they have

         15  got to do another expansion out there.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Right, and

         17  are they proposing to do another expansion there?

         18                 MR. REUTER:  We're still talking to

         19  them, but they have not told us what their firm

         20  plans are for that development.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  So you

         22  don't know what is happening in terms of all of

         23  this, and yet, you're moving forward with the

         24  proposal.

         25                 MR. REUTER:  The proposal has already
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          2  been built, Mr. McCaffrey.  We started it, it is now

          3  built.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  No, I'm

          5  not talking, Mr. Reuter, I'm talking about service.

          6  Your talking about putting in a service train.

          7                 MR. REUTER:  But the construction

          8  basically preconceived the service that was going

          9  in.  Once you made that decision 10 years ago, what

         10  we are now going into operation is what was approved

         11  and agreed to 20 years ago and 10 years ago.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  There was

         13  a change in reality, when this was done 10 year ago,

         14  there was no discussion of development at Queens

         15  Plaza.

         16                 MR. REUTER:  No, there was actually

         17  projections and looks that people did in a normal

         18  forecast.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Yes, I

         20  have represented this area, I know it better than

         21  you do, I served as the Chair of the Community Board

         22  before being in the Council, and there was never any

         23  discussion about development other than a flea

         24  market at Queens Plaza.  Okay, so please, don't tell

         25  me any of that because it's not correct.  Okay?
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          2  It's simply incorrect.  Okay?  No one thought about

          3  the Waldkoff site a  years ago, they did not think

          4  about 5 years ago or 4 years ago for a million

          5  square feet in terms of this.

          6                 So these are all the consequences of

          7  what I'm saying to you in terms of the service

          8  impact, is if you're going to put a service impact

          9  in place you have to have some current hard economic

         10  analysis of what the consequences are going to be

         11  here.  That is what we're saying to you very pure

         12  and simply.

         13                 I understand it is a matter of

         14  convenience for other portions of Queens, some of

         15  which I do represent versus the economic development

         16  of this area, this is going to be the area in the

         17  City of New York that is going to have the greatest

         18  potential for economic development.  If we do not

         19  develop Long Island City, there is nowhere else for

         20  folks to go, except outside of New York City.

         21                 And I don't know why the Transit

         22  Authority of the City of New York wants to help

         23  propel people to go to New Jersey, I really don't,

         24  it's beyond me.

         25                 MR. REUTER:  Well this proposal is,
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          2  as I mentioned earlier, it actually provides a 20

          3  percent capacity improvement for those people

          4  wanting to go into Manhattan from both Brooklyn and

          5  Queens.  So it is a service enhancement.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Right.

          7  Well the issue is where people want to go rather

          8  than where you want them to go, and all I can

          9  suggest to you is that - -

         10                 MR. REUTER:  Well the people  - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY: - -  the

         12  Chairman has given you an excellent recommendation,

         13  and the excellent recommendation is you should be

         14  going back out with a much better program in terms

         15  of soliciting public opinion and meeting with folks

         16  on a much closer basis.

         17                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         19  Eisland.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you

         21  very much.  Being from the Bronx, I guess I have a

         22  little bit of Yogi Bearer in me, and it's like deja

         23  vu  all over again.  As the Chairperson in the

         24  eighties of the Transportation Committee, I can

         25  remember the extensive delays and interruptions in
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          2  the construction work on the Manhattan Bridge.  What

          3  have we learned from that, why will it be different

          4  this time, why will we not have those same

          5  interruptions and same problems?  I mean, what was

          6  the problem and what will be the problems now that

          7  you have to overcome?

          8                 MR. REUTER:  I think I really,

          9  Councilwoman Eisland, defer to City DOT, it's their

         10  project and not ours.  I can give you my

         11  perspective, but it is a City DOT project, you

         12  really need to ask them to get the right answer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Well you're

         14  here now.

         15                 MR. REUTER:  Right.  What we know

         16  about right now is they know a lot more about what

         17  the issues and structural problems on the Bridge

         18  because they have been working on it so long.  They

         19  have also, I think, learned how to put the contracts

         20  together to manage them with both incentives in them

         21  and penalties and they have done that in this

         22  contract.  So I really think that they really know

         23  what needs to be done on this Bridge.  The scope of

         24  work is well defined and they have got a very good

         25  plan to get this work done in three years.  I'm
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          2  fairly confident.

          3                 With any construction project things

          4  can happen, obviously, but I think right now we have

          5  looked at it, we have worked with them the whole

          6  way, I think they have got this thing as well as

          7  they can under control.  And I think three years is

          8  going to be a realistic time frame.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Well I wish

         10  I shared your optimism.  The lines, obviously that

         11  I'm most concerned about are the D and the B Line.

         12  And there is probably precious little other lines

         13  that take as long to get from the North Bronx where

         14  the D and B begin into Midtown Manhattan and Lower

         15  Manhattan and out to Brooklyn.

         16                 Sometimes you have an optimum

         17  situation, and as far as the D and the B are

         18  concerned, it's a seamless ride.  It can be a

         19  seamless ride not only from the North Bronx and

         20  through lots of communities in Norwood, Bedford Park

         21  and a bunch of colleges and schools down through

         22  Tremont and Yankee Stadium, but it goes all the way

         23  out to Coney Island, Sunset Park, and particularly

         24  to Lower Manhattan.   What will happen now is this

         25  seamless ride, which people appreciate will be
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          2  interrupted, people will have to change at 34th

          3  Street.

          4                 There is a large, from what I can

          5  tell because I have gotten a lot of calls and

          6  correspondence and so has the Community Board and a

          7  lot of people that work in Lower Manhattan that take

          8  particularly the D and the B Lines, they will no

          9  longer be able to get to work in the same time that

         10  they are getting there now.

         11                 How is this an enhancement, certainly

         12  for the Bronx?

         13                 MR. REUTER:  Well for this three

         14  years it is not an enhancement for the Bronx, I

         15  mean, you're right.  During this construction phase,

         16  we're talking enhancements, which is really the 63rd

         17  Street Connection, which is service improvement.

         18  The Manhattan Bridge is not a service improvement,

         19  it is truly a construction project we're trying to

         20  mitigate.  Those people are going to have longer

         21  commutes for the three years of the Manhattan Bridge

         22  Project, and what we have done is try to do a

         23  service plan to minimize that as much as possible,

         24  but it is all we can do with the lack of track space

         25  going across the bridge, we have done the best we
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          2  can.

          3                 They're going to have to transfer at

          4  34th Street, we recognize that and their commute

          5  will be slightly longer, okay, and we're just going

          6  to have to work with them to learn the travel

          7  patterns.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Well I think

          9  it is going to be confusing and more than slightly

         10  longer.  You have also got the people that are used

         11  to taking the 6th Avenue route that go to Chinatown

         12  from the Bronx, they're not going to be able to do

         13  that on that route anymore, so that is another

         14  segment of the shopping population that is not going

         15  to be able to get to Chinatown because of this

         16  interruption.

         17                 MR. REUTER:  Well they can still get

         18  there with transfers, but not the direct route they

         19  had before.  Until the bridge is done, we're just

         20  not going to be able to do anything about it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Again, it is

         22  very hard for me to sit here thinking about people

         23  who take the subway and minimize the concept of

         24  transfer when you're going from one end of the City,

         25  which is the North Bronx, through all of Manhattan,
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          2  and again, out to Coney Island and other areas out

          3  in the other end of Brooklyn.  To me it just seems

          4  like it is an impossible kind of situation.  I don't

          5  have a lot of faith that this is going to be a

          6  three- year project, remembering the interruptions

          7  that took place in 1988 when I chaired the

          8  Committee.  And I don't feel reassured one single

          9  bit in hearing that, particularly from a people from

         10  a Borough that is isolated enough transportation-

         11  wise, and instead of making life easier, we're

         12  making it more difficult.

         13                 MR. REUTER:  I understand that, but

         14  again, it's not my, I would not be doing this if I

         15  had my druthers, believe me, I don't want to be

         16  sitting here changing all this service affecting

         17  600,000.  But because right now that is the schedule

         18  that the City is giving us, we had to do the best

         19  service plan we can with what is available.  I think

         20  we have done that.  We have worked very closely with

         21  them, we think they're going to do this in three

         22  years, but you really have to talk to them to get

         23  more assurance than I can give you, because it is

         24  not my project, I don't run it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  No, I don't
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          2  think you can walk away from the responsibility and

          3  put the responsibility on us as individuals or as a

          4  Committee or as a legislative body to talk to them.

          5  I mean I really think the buck stops where you are,

          6  and I'm glad that you're here to talk about it, but

          7  please don't put that back on us.

          8                 MR. REUTER:  No, I don't mean to put

          9  it back - -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:   Because I

         11  think that is inappropriate.

         12                 MR. REUTER:  I have talked to them

         13  and we are as comfortable as we can be that it will

         14  be done in three years.  I cannot give you much more

         15  assurances then we have sat down with them, we do

         16  feel very comfortable that they have got the plan

         17  that is going to get it done in three years.  We

         18  feel that comfortable, I can give you that assurance

         19  from us.

         20                 If you want better assurances from

         21  the people who run the project, you have got to talk

         22  to them.  We do work very closely with them, we

         23  think it is going to be done in three years.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I want to

         25  ask permission of the Chair now if I can vote on the
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          2  resolutions on these items?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.  How do you

          4  vote?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I vote aye.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, thank you.

          7  Okay, Council Member Freed, who is a co- sponsor of

          8  this resolution.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Well I'm the

         10  prime sponsor, but, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes, and also of

         12  the, she is most affected by this area, as well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Yes.  Thank

         14  you very much. Gee, I hardly know where to start.  I

         15  mean, you have heard me on this before, but I think,

         16  and it's clearly not just, I'm not just talking

         17  about the Lower Manhattan, Lower East Side,

         18  Chinatown community, but it is also clear even with

         19  the other communities that are affected, not only

         20  just by the Manhattan Bridge closing, but also by

         21  the questions of the interim lines that you're

         22  putting in, the ones that go to Queens, the ones

         23  that affect Brooklyn. That, you know, we were angry

         24  that there was no public hearing about the closing

         25  of the Grand Street Station.  The idea that four

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  years is temporary honestly does not cut it.

          3                 But I'm also convinced that if you

          4  had had a public hearing you would have turned the

          5  same deaf eye to community and deaf ear to the

          6  community.  And the same deaf ear that you have

          7  turned to the other communities in Queens.  You

          8  know, I think the decisions by the MTA seem to be

          9  made in some rarified atmosphere that doesn't have

         10  anything to do with reality in the majority of this

         11  City.  It is not just in the Lower Manhattan, but it

         12  is clearly in Queens and in Brooklyn.

         13                 You look at these things and you move

         14  them around on maps, but you seem to have lost the

         15  connection that you are dealing and making big

         16  impacts on the lives of millions and millions of New

         17  Yorkers.  The decisions that you make where you

         18  decide that you can run, that instead of running

         19  more M trains and running an express and running

         20  them full time, 24 hours a day, when it's clear

         21  there is a capacity, I don't understand how you make

         22  that decision, any more than I understand how you

         23  make a decision on the G Line that you're going to

         24  stop, that you're going to miss certain stops.

         25                 For every one of those decisions, not
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          2  only do you have an impact on individuals' lives and

          3  how long it takes them to get to and from work or

          4  drop their children off or senior centers, but it

          5  also has an impact on the businesses of every one of

          6  those areas.  In the 1980s when the Grand Street

          7  Station was closed that whole area of Lower

          8  Manhattan and Chinatown was absolutely devastated.

          9  We saw an increase of drugs, of prostitution, of

         10  crime, no one went there.  The stores that had been

         11  there went out of business.  The idea that you think

         12  that you can somehow supplement that by running a

         13  bus from Canal Street to Grand Street, that, quite

         14  frankly, will never get there because those are the

         15  most, those are absolutely the most congested

         16  streets in this entire City.  Those buses are going

         17  to sit there and all they're going to do is add to

         18  the pollution.

         19                 The idea that bringing a shuttle down

         20  from Broadway Lafayette, not even one from West 4th

         21  Street like we have asked, you know, is not going to

         22  work, people are not going to take it. The fact that

         23  area depends heavily on tourism for the end of the

         24  Lower Manhattan Bridge or the Lower Manhattan BID

         25  and the old historic Orchard Street BID, which is
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          2  just today celebrating the fact, in fact, I'm

          3  missing it because I have been waiting my turn to

          4  speak, is celebrating as we speak their being

          5  designated a national landmark talks to the

          6  importance.  But you know what, they're not going to

          7  get, they will never get the amount of people there

          8  again, until this is back into service because they

          9  depended on that subway to get people there.

         10                 People who are new in this City,

         11  people who are tourists are not going to be able to

         12  follow this, they're not going to be able to figure

         13  shuttles and buses and trains and whatever, it isn't

         14  going to happen.  Those businesses are going to be

         15  devastated.  And the businesses on Canal Street,

         16  Canal Street could not possibly put another business

         17  in there, you do not have room for it.

         18                 The fact that when the Canal Street

         19  Station was supposed to be renovated and it was

         20  supposed to be renovated, the renovations were

         21  supposed to end in 1993, and they are just now

         22  completing those renovations makes me very skeptical

         23  that this is going to be a three or a four year

         24  project, it's going to be a lot longer.

         25                 And as far as DOT, I have already put
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          2  in a bill calling for a complete hearing of the

          3  contracts that have led up to this mess on the

          4  Manhattan Bridge.  They have been working there for

          5  almost 20 years by the time this is finished.

          6                 You know, the frustration that people

          7  continue to feel in the City about the way decisions

          8  are made that don't seem to take into consideration

          9  their lives and what impacts their lives is just

         10  going to be enlarged and they're going to be most

         11  sure about that when they look at these changes.  I

         12  mean it doesn't make it when you sit here and say,

         13  there is absolutely nothing else we can do.

         14                 We have come forward for months with

         15  different proposals that you have basically said we

         16  cannot do this or maybe we will look at it later.

         17  But you have got to come up with a better idea and

         18  you have got to better serve the City as a whole,

         19  but specifically the Lower Manhattan area, as well

         20  as the areas that are impacting on Queens and

         21  Brooklyn.  There are ways to do this, there are ways

         22  to extend the M service.  And while we're at it,

         23  let's talk about the fact that when you get to the

         24  Coney Island end of that, how come one stops before

         25  it gets into Coney Island? Why don't you extend
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          2  that, why don't you run express service 24 hours a

          3  day, as well as interim, you know, as well as

          4  interim service to those areas?

          5                 There have been so much ridership

          6  increase in the City, we're looking at almost a

          7  million more people in the City, you have got to

          8  come to grips with that and you have got to find a

          9  way to better serve the people in the City.  You're

         10  not doing it now, you're woefully short, I sincerely

         11  hope that you will put more thought into this, come

         12  up with other ways in all of these lines that we're

         13  looking at.

         14                 Obviously, I'm concerned with Lower

         15  Manhattan, I'm telling you this is a disaster for

         16  Lower Manhattan.  The proposals you have made are

         17  just woefully inadequate, but also the failure to

         18  connect the communities in Brooklyn and the failure

         19  to run additional lines in Queens, you have got to

         20  do better, you have go to add more service and you

         21  have got to start taking the ridership and the

         22  people in the City into more consideration, and

         23  don't make these decisions in a rarified atmosphere.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. REUTER:  All right, we have
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          2  talked before so we- -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, so you know

          4  that.  Okay, Council Member DiBrienza.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman. I apologize, I did not want to miss

          7  this, even though I have a cold and I will leave a

          8  staff person behind to hear the rest of it, but I'm

          9  going to have to step away.

         10                 Two or three quick things, Mr.

         11  Reuter.  Do you have an opinion or do you realize

         12  that it's of no value and no comfort to tell people

         13  there will be more service, if the trains do not go

         14  where they want to go, do you realize that?

         15                 MR. REUTER:  Well, actually - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Is that a

         17  reasonable proposal?

         18                 MR. REUTER:  Well actually more

         19  people will benefit by, when you're talking the G

         20  train, more people will benefit by those trains than

         21  the people that will not be.  That was the decision

         22  that was made.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  But you

         24  want to satisfy people who say a very simple thing.

         25  It's the 10 years later, Greenpoint/Williamsburg is
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          2  changed, Queens continues to change and on the edge

          3  of further development, we will stop the train one

          4  stop short of where you want/need to go and you

          5  should be happy because there will be more trains

          6  running during that time.  But if it is one stop

          7  short, Court Square instead of Queens Plaza, it does

          8  not do them any good to know that there are a few

          9  extra trains running, that is the question I'm

         10  asking you, do you realize that?

         11                 MR. REUTER:  Yes, we realize it.  But

         12  it's not stopping short - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  And so if

         14  you could say to me someone will be happy, but that

         15  is a different person, a person who does need to go

         16  to Queens Plaza might be happy, but the people on

         17  the train who want to go to Queens Plaza to connect

         18  up and down Queens cannot be happy that there are

         19  more trains running, but not where they want to go,

         20  that is a simple premise.

         21                 MR. REUTER:  There are more trains

         22  running where they want to go, they just have to

         23  make a transfer that is the difference to them.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Without

         25  getting off the G train.
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          2                 MR. REUTER:  Right.  They will be

          3  allowed to do it with transfer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Which

          5  leads me to the capacity question.

          6                 MR. REUTER:  But it's a real issue

          7  that was done when you heard Walter McCaffrey

          8  talking earlier about an economic analysis.  The

          9  issue was there is estimated to be 10,000 G trains

         10  users that will be adversely impacted by this that

         11  will have to make a transfer.  They will get 20

         12  percent more service, but there is 400 - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  But not to

         14  where they want to go.

         15                 MR. REUTER:  There are 270 - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  You keep

         17  saying that.

         18                 MR. REUTER:  No, it will still get

         19  them to where they want to go, it is going to go to

         20  the same places.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  They want

         22  to go to Queens Plaza without getting off the subway

         23  at Court Square and walking 500 feet through a

         24  tunnel, that is what they want to do.

         25                 MR. REUTER:  But they can still get

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  there without that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  And you

          4  have capacity to do that.

          5                 MR. REUTER:  No, we do not.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Every

          7  indication we have seen from independent people,

          8  including folks who are trying to work with this

          9  community indicate that you can extend the G. Unless

         10  you're perpetrating a giant fraud by delaying the

         11  vote a month and you're not engaging in meaningful

         12  review or accurate test of the capacity, and you

         13  know sitting there today but will not tell us that

         14  it is going to turn out to be no, unless you're

         15  prepared to say that, then there is real indication

         16  that there is capacity.

         17                 Look, I have read the testimony you

         18  will hear later from Local 100, the Transport

         19  Workers' Union, those are the folks who make the

         20  system run.  They have tested it, they have looked

         21  at it, they're going to testify that there is more

         22  capacity.  There are independent people helping the

         23  community who are going to tell you there is more

         24  capacity.

         25                 You guys delayed the decision for a
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          2  month, now unless you're just stringing us along for

          3  the month to try to placate people, there has to be

          4  a potential for more capacity on that piece of it.

          5                 But let me ask you one other

          6  question.  Do you listen to yourself?  Because I

          7  don't think you listen to the riders, you know,

          8  enough.

          9                 I looked at your testimony, "we have

         10  made presentations to," and you go on to talk about

         11  who you made presentations to.  "In late May, about

         12  a month before all these service changes occur, we

         13  will turn our focus to the 600 customers whose rides

         14  are effected."  See what that conjures up to me is

         15  you decided and even when you go to these places all

         16  you do is present what you have already determined

         17  and the riders are the last sort of - -  "In late

         18  May about a month," I'm quoting you, "before the

         19  service changes the code, we will turn our focus to

         20  the riders, 600,000 customers."  I mean that seems a

         21  little backwards to me.

         22                 MR. REUTER:  No, that is not true.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  They're

         24  the customers.

         25                 MR. REUTER:  That is why that bus
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          2  shuttle is up there.  We listen to them, and even

          3  though you heard Council Member Freed say it is

          4  congested, and I told you it will be, we put that

          5  bus shuttle because we heard that from the

          6  community, we added the best we could.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  People

          8  wanted additional bus service, they wanted M

          9  express, they want the shuttle you are going to run

         10  to go to West 4th for better connection, - -

         11                 MR. REUTER:  And we told - -

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA: - -  and

         13  the rest of the folks need that G train to go one

         14  more stop.

         15                 MR. REUTER:  Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  One more

         17  stop.

         18                 MR. REUTER:  And it was not designed

         19  and built to do that and we're trying with tests to

         20  see whether we can squeeze it in.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Yes.

         22                 MR. REUTER:  Contrary to what other

         23  stuff you're reading.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  Yes.  But

         25  it needs to go one more stop now because of the 10
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          2  years of reality that is changed, and you're

          3  implementing a plan, which you say will stop it from

          4  happening based on 10- year- old data.

          5                 So who is doing better here, people

          6  who want the train to go one more stop so they can

          7  make their connections, and it's based on current

          8  reality, or you guys saying, but the VGB, ABC,

          9  alphabet soup situation doesn't allow us to do it,

         10  and that is based on 10- year- old information, who

         11  is doing a better job there?

         12                 MR. REUTER:  If you look at the

         13  information, right now, Council Member DiBrienza,

         14  there are still more riders on the Queens Boulevard

         15  than the G irregardless of what development is going

         16  out there by 10 to 1.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:  All right,

         18  look.

         19                 MR. REUTER:  It is a huge number

         20  difference.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DIBRIENZA:   I don't

         22  think I'm going to change your mind.  I appreciate

         23  that you always answer the questions, and I would

         24  just say to you there is a world of difference

         25  between presentations of things you have already
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          2  decided and formal public hearings, which you should

          3  have held in every borough and you still have time

          4  to hold.

          5                 I went to the one in Queens, it was

          6  in the middle of a relatively inaccessible part of

          7  Queens even though it covered all the other areas,

          8  it had relatively small turn out because of it, and

          9  I think formal public hearings, you know, even if

         10  not technically required, as the Chairman indicated

         11  in a different, would have gone far to involve your

         12  ridership, the people you're supposed to be there to

         13  serve.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I just want to

         16  take a vote, a quick vote before we go on with the

         17  questioning.

         18                 Resolution 1840 and 1841.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Dear.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Miller.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Lopez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  June Eisland voted
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          2  and so did Council Member McCaffrey.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Nelson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  So leave it open.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  The vote

          7  stands at 6 in the affirmative, none in the negative

          8  and no abstentions and it is still open.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Okay,

         10  again, obviously you hear the sentiments of the

         11  Council, is, obviously, again focused on the public

         12  hearing aspect, and also there was a full gone

         13  conclusion before you even got out there and you

         14  want to sell it to the community.

         15                 What I'm urging you, again, that the

         16  community has been very vocal and the elected

         17  officials throughout the City have been very

         18  concerned, and I think you have to take a hard look

         19  at some of these issues.  In particular, that we

         20  have to have the M train run with more capacity on

         21  those lines, and also not only off peak hours, I

         22  mean, on as well as off- peak hours.

         23                 In addition to that, according to my

         24  analysis also and the staff analysis, is that the

         25  people also getting hurt are the people in the lower
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          2  part of Brooklyn because the W Line is going to end

          3  at 36th Street, particular on off- hours and on

          4  weekends.

          5                 So what about those people who live

          6  further down to 36th Street into lower into

          7  Brooklyn, what kind of service are we going to

          8  provide to them?

          9                 MR. REUTER:  Yes, we can show you, if

         10  you want?

         11                 MR. CAFIAERO:  We have got a map

         12  here, but the W service will run 24 hours, 7 days a

         13  week along the West End Line in Brooklyn between

         14  Coney Island and 36th Street.

         15                 At nights, today the B train is a

         16  shuttle to 36th Street, so that will not change,

         17  just the letter of it will.  As I said before during

         18  week days from five or six in the morning until

         19  midnight or somewhat after midnight the W train will

         20  run through to Manhattan, and for most of that time

         21  to Astoria, late evenings it will end at 57th and

         22  7th Avenue.

         23                 On weekends because of other

         24  reconstruction projects affecting the system, the W

         25  will end at Pacific Street in Brooklyn. So it will
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          2  run from Coney Island, Stillwell to Pacific Street

          3  where transfers connections can be made to many

          4  other subway lines  -              CHAIRPERSON DEAR:

          5    Wait, wait a minute, one second, many subway

          6  lines, I'm talking below lower Brooklyn, below

          7  Pacific Street, what kind of many subway lines?

          8                 MR. REUTER:  Well you transfer at

          9  Pacific.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I'm aware, to who?

         11                 MR. CAFIAERO:  To the N, R, 2, 3, 4,

         12  5, 2.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  But not to Nassau

         14  Street, but you will not be able to go from there to

         15  Nassau Street?

         16                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What can we do to

         18  rectify that?

         19                 MR. CAFIAERO:  This is weekends we're

         20  talking about.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I understand that.

         22    I mean, there are people who use the subway system

         23  during the weekends, as well.

         24                 MR. CAFIAERO:  The quickest way to

         25  get to the Nassau Street Line, regardless of whether
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          2  the M is running through to Brooklyn or not, is

          3  still to go over the Manhattan Bridge on either the

          4  Q or W on week days, or the Q on weekends to Canal

          5  Street and connect there to the J or M train, if one

          6  is going up to the Bowery.  That is still five to

          7  seven minutes faster than going through the tunnel

          8  and up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You know, let me

         10  explain, from lower Brooklyn talking about Bay 50th,

         11  25th Avenue, all along that line.  How are you going

         12  to get people in Bensonhurst, people in the Coney

         13  Island Avenue, Coney Island/Stillwell Avenue area,

         14  how are people going to get from there on weekends

         15  to go to Lower Manhattan without taking an extra 40

         16  minutes to get there?

         17                 MR. CAFIAERO:  It depends where

         18  they're going to. They will have a two- seat ride to

         19  get to Manhattan.

         20                 MR. REUTER:  On a transfer.

         21                 MR. CAFIAERO:  And this is due other

         22  work at DeKalb Avenue Station and other projects

         23  throughout the system.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What is Dekalb

         25  Avenue Station taking place, what is going on there?
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          2                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Rehabilitation of that

          3  station.

          4                 MR. REUTER: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  It started

          6  already?

          7                 MR. REUTER:  Sure, yes, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I'm glad it was

          9  all coordinated.

         10                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Well actually it is

         11  coordinated because it would have been impossible

         12  with the current bridge, or much more difficult with

         13  transferring on the current side of the bridge.   We

         14  would have had to break the B and the D routes to do

         15  this work every weekend, and it's with, we actually

         16  put that work off until the bridge changes so that

         17  it, because it will be a lot easier and less

         18  disruptive to our customers to rerouted trains as

         19  that station is being rebuilt.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You see what the

         21  problem is, and I don't blame certain communities

         22  when they start to protest it, why is it only

         23  picking on us?  If you look at the whole route that

         24  you're talking about, it literally affects the Asian

         25  community, because it is not only Chinatown, it is
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          2  down that route of Brooklyn, as well.  And what

          3  happens is they say, why did you pick on us?  What

          4  did we do wrong, and what recent that we should be

          5  affected by this as opposed to other communities?

          6  And I have to tell you, I would support their claim,

          7  and I think we have to look at the way to move,

          8  especially on weekends, if you and anyone would

          9  travel to the Chinatown on weekends, I mean, it's

         10  busy.  And people or where they're coming from, it's

         11  not only from within the community, they're coming

         12  from Brooklyn and it's a large community that would

         13  want to get to Chinatown and that area, and they're

         14  not going to be able to get there, it will probably

         15  take them two hours.  It would be faster for them to

         16  go to Philadelphia and take the train from

         17  Philadelphia - -

         18                 MR. REUTER:  It will not be that

         19  long.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  It will not be

         21  that long.

         22                 MR. REUTER:  It will not that long,

         23  but I think what you need to do, Mr. Chair, as you

         24  suggested, you wanted your staff to sit on, we can

         25  show you.  But you cannot, I just caution people to
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          2  look at a subway map and start drawing lines,

          3  because you have got to take a look at what is going

          4  on, with what the capacity on local and express, and

          5  then what work is going on throughout the system.

          6  Because it is easy to look and say well, we will run

          7  the M, you know, all days and weekends but we cannot

          8  do it because there is other work going on in the

          9  system.

         10                 We really need to sit down and

         11  explain that, we offered to do that with everybody,

         12  so.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I have no problem,

         14  what I will do, I would ask staff to immediately

         15  contact to your staff and to sit down with you, and

         16  hopefully they will be satisfied because they have

         17  done a lot of extensive research on this and it's a

         18  lot of work.  And I want to thank, in fact, the

         19  investigative unit for working so hard in this

         20  project and have done a very good job in informing

         21  us and letting us know what is going on.  And I

         22  think it is helpful to bring that information to

         23  you, as well.

         24                 Council Member Pinkett, and then - -

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT:  Thank you.
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          2  I am very pleased to see you, and I am very happy

          3  that I was able to participate in this discussion.

          4  I also would join in suggesting that there be a

          5  further discussion with the community and it should

          6  be broader than just the construct of the G Line,

          7  and should take in the total ramification of what

          8  this means as far as the reconstruction.

          9                 I think the last bit of dialogue is

         10  very, very important.  When Pacific Street was

         11  mentioned as a point of transfer, I think that the

         12  Asian community will find that they're perfectly

         13  safe going to and through the Pacific Street

         14  Station. You would be surprised at the number of

         15  Asian students from Brooklyn Tech who manage to get

         16  in and out of Brooklyn Tech and use the Pacific

         17  Street Station without any injury or adverse

         18  situation, and are very happy to do so.

         19                 The fact that it takes you longer is

         20  part of what happens in a city that cannot

         21  accommodate everyone with a 20- minute ride.  If

         22  anything is done to adversely suggest that going

         23  through that part of the City means that we're going

         24  to start planning a city within a partite plan, I am

         25  going to raise holy hell, I will tell you right now,
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          2  and I will help you by making sure that we know that

          3  this Council cannot have places that people cannot

          4  go because it is terrible to go into that part of

          5  the City.

          6                 The Pacific Street Station is not too

          7  far from Bam, where people travel continually.  It

          8  is part of a cultural center, it has people of all

          9  ethnic groups who in that community and they manage

         10  to thrive very, very well.

         11                 So I think that this plan should be

         12  discussed in an open situation so that all of the

         13  citizens of Brooklyn will know also what it portends

         14  for them.  While I'm very concerned that Manhattan

         15  and Lower Manhattan be well taken care of, I'm

         16  concerned that the money that is spent consider all

         17  of the citizens of this City.  Now I have gone to

         18  Chinatown on the train, I have gone to Coney Island

         19  on the train.  As a matter of fact, there was a time

         20  when people going to Coney Island used to take the

         21  Franklin Avenue shuttle and they would go all the

         22  way to Coney Island and somehow we managed to get

         23  there safely and then someone made a silly decision

         24  that it was not necessary to continue that line all

         25  the way to Coney Island.  I don't why that decision
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          2  was made, but it certainly did not help us and it

          3  did not help you.

          4                 As far as the DeKalb Avenue Station,

          5  which is part of this correction or changes in the

          6  station, it is good for all of us.  And I would

          7  suggest, too, to the Chairperson that DeKalb Avenue

          8  is also a very safe line and we have had no

          9  incidents that will say to you that you need to

         10  bring the FBI, the CIA or anything to get in or out.

         11    Well, I mean if it is so bad, I want to know who

         12  we need, because I do think that those stations have

         13  not had any unportend, any situations of such a need

         14  that we have to be fearful.

         15                 I go to Bay Ridge to a center and

         16  there is a large Chinese community and I find that I

         17  get in and out and I don't think they're offended

         18  when I come in, nor are, I would feel that community

         19  going to be offended when people of all races or

         20  creeds or ethnicity come into any community or

         21  should they be offended. No part of this city

         22  belongs to any one group of people, the city belongs

         23  to all of us and is to be shared by all of us.  And

         24  anyone who has a problem must be in the wrong city.

         25                 With that I urge you to have open
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          2  hearings to bring this plan out so no one can

          3  mistake the intentions of the Transit and

          4  transportation as you plan any changes in this

          5  system.  Now we may want certain corrections, and

          6  that may be necessarily good that there would be

          7  corrections.  But I would suggest the community that

          8  does not ride on transportation from Friday night to

          9  Saturday, would not worry about that weekend too

         10  much.  But I do know that all communities want to be

         11  safe, all communities want good transportation.  So

         12  if you have an open meeting where all of us can

         13  participate, I have no problem if I have to go out

         14  to, what is that community that you're most

         15  concerned about, the that the Chair was most

         16  concerned about the transportation?  I would have no

         17  concern about going to a meeting there to make sure

         18  that all of us receive the best and the safest

         19  transportation that the City has to offer.

         20                 Thank you so much for your presence.

         21                 MR. REUTER:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         23  Lopez, may I ask- -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I only have

         25  one question.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  All right, let's

          3  ask people to just - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can you tell

          5  me how many jobs are going to be lost due to this?

          6                 MR. REUTER:  Jobs lost?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes.

          8                 MR. REUTER:  None that we know of.

          9  This has actually costing me a lot of money in jobs

         10  to provide this service, not only is going to impact

         11  the Chinese community, but this Manhattan Bridge

         12  service plan, for example, is costing me over $20

         13  million.  So we have to put on extra people to do

         14  this.  So how it is going to affect the Chinese

         15  community - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  This is going

         17  to have an impact in the neighborhood.

         18                 MR. REUTER: - -  we don't know, I

         19  mean, we cannot tell you that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Forgive me for

         21  not going into the direction of ethnicity of this

         22  issue.  Workers, for me, don't have a particular

         23  ethnicity, they are workers.  Then it is irrelevant

         24  to me if they come from a particular ethnicity or

         25  not.
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          2                 What I'm asking is if you have an

          3  idea how many workers are going to be affected by

          4  this in term of loss of jobs? And looking at the

          5  question of jobs simply in the arena of the project

          6  contained inside the train system, but I'm looking

          7  in the arena of all the jobs that this is going to

          8  be affecting.  The jobs in the businesses around the

          9  area, the jobs that are secondary to that, jobs that

         10  have to do with people traveling from one point to

         11  another, have you made any projections about this?

         12                 MR. REUTER:  No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  No?

         14                 MR. REUTER:  No, we wouldn't do that

         15  because it is a City project, City DOT.  We're being

         16  impacted the same way those businesses are, it would

         17  be something that you really need to ask City DOT,

         18  we would not do that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, I thank

         20  you.

         21                 MR. REUTER:  Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We raised that

         23  issue, Council Member Lopez, in the economic impact,

         24  Council member.  We raised this issue, Council

         25  Member Lopez, on this in general about the economic

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  impact it will have on the communities and we

          3  understand that, and they also explained that the

          4  community is larger than just Chinatown, it's down

          5  in Brooklyn, as well.  And they probably, the most

          6  impact this will have is on the Asian community

          7  because of the movement, it is not so much people

          8  going from Brooklyn to Manhattan, it is the people

          9  who want to go to Brooklyn to Lower Manhattan back

         10  Manhattan to Brooklyn.  And so what we have to do is

         11  keep pressing that only the Transit Authority, MTA,

         12  but also obviously DOT to see if we can come to some

         13  sort of resolution. And also staff will meet with

         14  the TA to see if we can come up with extra

         15  suggestions, better suggestions and better,

         16  improvement of service.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just

         18  indicated that because in the area that we're

         19  talking about in Grand Street area, that is a very

         20  diverse community there.  It is a community of

         21  Latinos, Jewish, Chinese, African- American, and

         22  that is the reason I did not appreciate it the

         23  statement that was made by you in regard of

         24  exclusively, you know, narrowing this to the Asian

         25  community.
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          2                 And, incidentally, just a comment,

          3  when the Chairman mentioned that maybe the Asian

          4  community feels that this is a particular issue

          5  against them, I have to say that communities tend to

          6  relocate themselves when they come from other

          7  places, according to the facilities of mass

          8  transportation that they find.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And that is why

         10  they - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And I'm not

         12  surprised -              CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  That is

         13  why.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: - -  that that

         15  is the reason why Asian communities develop in

         16  connection to this particular lines, and it is not

         17  that it is vendetta, I guess, against them in

         18  particular.  But I think it is not being good

         19  planning, that I do think.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.

         22  Council Member Nelson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I would

         24  agree, Mr. Chair, I think that most of the quotient

         25  questions had been answered, and probably mercifully
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          2  so, but I want to bring up something.  You knew you

          3  would be beaten up a little bit, like the love- fest

          4  you have with Council Member McCaffrey.  You know

          5  electives in the public do deserve to have public

          6  forum, so my question would be also, why do you do

          7  the things you do, why didn't you plan ahead with

          8  that and have more public forums prior to this?

          9  That would have taken one thing off the plate.

         10                 MR. REUTER:  Well we actually have

         11  had, as I mentioned, over 20 public forums on the

         12  Manhattan Bridge.  We have gone to every meeting

         13  that has been set up, that has been scheduled.  So

         14  we have not shirked over time.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Over 20?

         16                 MR. REUTER:  Over 20.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  How many in

         18  Brooklyn?

         19                 MR. REUTER:  I don't know, I will get

         20  you the number of all the locations for you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Because there

         22  has not been any I know in my little corner of the

         23  world.

         24                 And having done your homework, as a

         25  matter of fact, as far as, again, with the Financial
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          2  Impact Study and things like that.

          3                 However, having said that, just

          4  briefly I would like to say, you believe, you said

          5  about three, three or four years to complete this

          6  mission?

          7                 MR. REUTER:  The schedule right now

          8  that the City has is three years.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Do you

         10  believe that is realistic?

         11                 MR. REUTER:  Yes, we believe it is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Assuming what

         13  was done on the South Side, which was, I think close

         14  to 10.

         15                 MR. REUTER:  Right.  I think they

         16  have done a lot of lessons learned from that and

         17  they have incorporated that in the new contract.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Because I was

         19  going to say, you must have learned an awful lot

         20  from that overall.

         21                 MR. REUTER:  Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And just

         23  briefly too, as far as from my constituents coming

         24  from, let's say, Sheepshead Bay, and the 6th Avenue

         25  service part of it, where would they be changing?
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          2                 MR. REUTER:  Peter can answer, but it

          3  depends on where they're going, I think, but yes.

          4                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Most people will not

          5  probably transfer, if they're going to Midtown

          6  Manhattan.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Up to 34th

          8  Street.

          9                 MR. CAFIAERO:  Well the transfer, the

         10  two routes will intersect at 34th Street.  So for

         11  someone from your neighborhood going to the Upper

         12  Manhattan and the Bronx, they would have to transfer

         13  and they would do that at 34th Street.

         14                 For passengers, customers going to

         15  Rockefeller Center they will just exit a station at

         16  7th Avenue instead of 6th Avenue, for example, that

         17  would be more likely.  They could elect to transfer

         18  if they wanted to, but most of our riders will

         19  probably end up walking to a different station in

         20  Manhattan.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  They would,

         22  and they would be taking a slightly more securitist

         23  route with the Q Circle, Q Diamond.  Is there an

         24  estimate about how much longer the trip might take?

         25                 MR. CAFIAERO:  It is actually just
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          2  as, again, it depends where they're going, in fact,

          3  some customers will have a better trip, a shorter

          4  trip.  Right now those customers for the last 10 or

          5  15 years have had to walk that extra block back to

          6  7th Avenue, there are also better connections on the

          7  Broadway side to the East Side of Manhattan at Union

          8  Square where you can connect to the 4, 5 and 6, then

          9  currently is in place.

         10                 But the trains in terms of getting

         11  from Brooklyn to the same cross street in Midtown,

         12  it is roughly the same amount of time.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, I think

         14  she came over to you, was that to give you the

         15  information of some of the other, or how many public

         16  hearings you had in Brooklyn, was that what she gave

         17  you?

         18                 MR. REUTER:  She just mentioned to

         19  me, we had one with Community Board #15, but I will

         20  get you the whole list for also the meetings we have

         21  had, as well.  Okay?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  Thank

         23  you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I think that

         25  concludes your part of the testimony and our
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          2  questions to you.  I want to thank you again for,

          3  you know, for your testimony and for your frankness

          4  and for answering our questions, and accepting,

          5  obviously, some of these strong concerns that have

          6  been raised by my colleagues.  And what I would

          7  like, again, to reiterate and I hope that we can do,

          8  is to make sure that the suggestions of our staff is

          9  looked upon seriously, because these are not just

         10  suggestions that they have pulled out of a hat.

         11  They have done a lot of work on it and they have,

         12  some of these questions were raised now, and then

         13  maybe some of it could be re- examined and re-

         14  looked at.  Because I know if you take a hard look

         15  at some of these things, maybe you can make those

         16  changes.

         17                 And particularly I'm concerned about

         18  the people from Brooklyn on weekends and off- peak

         19  hours are not going to get service the way they

         20  should be and as well as the people trying to get in

         21  from Manhattan, then the people going from Chinatown

         22  back into Brooklyn, it's particular again on

         23  weekends and off- peak hours.

         24                 And with the G train it was suggested

         25  different ideas and particular to move this one more
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          2  stop from instead of Court Square to the next stop,

          3  obviously, because Queens Plaza is obviously a very

          4  important shopping district and people make use of

          5  that by standing on, from Brooklyn going into

          6  Queens, which is a good thing for Queens as well.

          7                 So I think you should take a hard

          8  look at this, just like in the G train, the Governor

          9  has stepped in and has made you, at this point,

         10  postpone the vote, I'm asking you to do the same to

         11  take a hard look, and I know I'm not the Governor to

         12  do that, but I try to do the best I can to make that

         13  request, to please take a hard look on some of the

         14  suggestions that we have made, and we will continue

         15  to have dialogue with you on this.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. REUTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18  And we would like to meet with your staff to go over

         19  it.  I think we have looked at all the issues, but

         20  we will gladly sit down and go over them with you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. REUTER:  I'm going to leave staff

         24  here, also, to hear the meeting.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I appreciate that.
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          2                 MR. REUTER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  It's okay, don't

          4  worry we will not criticize you after leaving, as

          5  long as staff is there, that is okay.

          6                 Just for the vote on the two

          7  resolutions, Council Member Rodriguez.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:  Aye on

          9  both.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you. We're

         11  going to go now to the witnesses, we have a stack of

         12  witnesses here, and as you can see the hour is

         13  creeping up on us, if we could just keep your

         14  testimony brief.  You have heard what the TA has

         15  said, if there is anything you want to add to that,

         16  please, do that.  Anything you want to testify, and

         17  give your written testimony to us, we will accept

         18  that as well.

         19                 Joanne Seminara from the Alliance of

         20  Bay Ridge.  Do you want to try to limit your

         21  testimony to three minutes, please?

         22                 MS. SEMINARA:  Thank you, Chairman

         23  Dear, Council members for holding this hearing, it

         24  is very, very long overdue.   I am Joanne Seminara.

         25  I represent the Alliance of Bay Ridge Block
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          2  Association, we're approximately 27 block

          3  associations in Bay Ridge, Brooklyn, and we're very,

          4  very frustrated by the fact that we had no public,

          5  there was no public input into making this decision.

          6    We're frustrated against the backdrop of the fact

          7  that about 18 years ago, we lost an express service

          8  259th Street on the 4th Avenue Line and that was

          9  supposed to be a temporary change. Twenty years ago

         10  I could get to Mid- Manhattan from 59th Street in 35

         11  minutes, I ride the subway every day along with

         12  thousands of my neighbors, we're lucky if we get

         13  there in an hour and ten minutes.

         14                 Now the long awaited south side of

         15  the bridge has been opened, and our track, our N

         16  track that used to serve our community is being used

         17  to service the Q, the Q Diamond, and the new B/W.

         18  We're very frustrated that we cannot at least share

         19  some of the service on that line.  We have waited

         20  very, very long, we have waited 18 years, we're now

         21  being told about a temporary change, and frankly, we

         22  don't buy it.

         23                 I'm very frustrated when I hear

         24  President Reuter say to us that he has been open

         25  with the community.  We have sent him about a
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          2  thousand letters, we have spent the last two years

          3  surveying riders in the subway, in the R train, the

          4  N train, the B train, we did not get this plan.  He

          5  knows our address, he knows where we are, he knows

          6  our names.  We did not get the opportunity to

          7  understand the plan.  There is lots of confusion

          8  about it, it wasn't on the website and we have not

          9  heard anything that sounds like a guarantee that

         10  we're going to get our N express service back.  It's

         11  been far too long, we're very, very frustrated, and

         12  very frustrated by an MTA that says to us, we're

         13  here, we have provided the opportunities for you to

         14  speak.  We have not been provided the information in

         15  a timely way.

         16                 And I'm glad the Council is holding

         17  this hearing, but the plan is already done and we

         18  were not given an opportunity to respond.

         19                 So basically we're looking for some

         20  assurances that the N express service will travel

         21  over that south side of the bridge.  We would like

         22  to share that south side now so that our communities

         23  can have some relief.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  The TA is right
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          2  behind you, that is one gentleman who could,

          3  obviously, we should reach out to that community, as

          4  well, and that is something we raised when we talked

          5  about the things about lower Brooklyn, people like

          6  yourself also affected by that, absolutely.

          7                 MS. SEMINARA:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, Ed Watt.

          9                 MR. WATT:  Is this your map?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Well, it's not

         11  ours.  Well, the one on the right is, yes, right.

         12                 MR. WATT:  That is?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

         14                 MR. WATT:  Okay, thank you.  I just

         15  wanted to make sure that the Transit Authority was

         16  not bringing a map from 1964.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  No, no, no, we

         18  did.

         19                 MR. WATT:  Because I can see the copy

         20  rights there- -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  No, no, no,

         22  because we're trying to compare something, we're

         23  trying to compare that.

         24                 MR. WATT:  Okay, very good.  My name

         25  is Ed Watt. I'm the Secretary Treasurer of
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          2  Transports Workers Union Local 100. I would like to

          3  thank Speaker Vallone and Chair Noach Dear for

          4  holding this hearing.  I would also like to thank

          5  them more so, because as we can see a vast majority

          6  of the efforts to offset the inconvenience of the

          7  riding public that the Transit Authority has

          8  addressed today are as a result of this public

          9  hearing.  So I would like to thank you for that in

         10  particular.

         11                 As we can hear stock answers, as

         12  Councilwoman Freed pointed out that their stock

         13  answers are either your suggestion doesn't work or

         14  we will think about it.  And the definitive part of

         15  the plan when they say, it is now their plan to

         16  augment these services.

         17                 The riders of New York City's buses

         18  and trains have a stake in how the Metropolitan's

         19  Transit Authority conducts its business, just as we,

         20  the Transport Workers Union do.  We have a stake in

         21  our job security and our working conditions, so it

         22  is natural for the communities, which depend on mass

         23  transit system to want to make their voices heard

         24  when the MTA is planning service changes, including

         25  the rerouting of lines and the closure of stations.
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          2  But the views of the riding public are generally not

          3  considered.  The Transit Authority needs to stop the

          4  doctrine of disregard for the stakeholders of our

          5  City's transportation systems, such as the

          6  communities and the riders.  That is why the

          7  Transport Workers' Local 100 are appearing today

          8  before you.

          9                 We are here to add our voices to

         10  those of community groups, which are opposed to the

         11  MTA's actions in Brooklyn, Queens and Manhattan.  We

         12  are the workers who run America's largest mass

         13  transit system, and we are here to tell you this,

         14  the changes which community groups seek are

         15  sensible, reasonable and doable.  The complaints

         16  aired by these stakeholders about the G Line

         17  cutbacks and the Grand Street Station closure are

         18  legitimate and need to be addressed.

         19                 Let me first speak in support of the

         20  Council's Resolution No. 1840 sponsored by Speaker

         21  Vallone and Council Member DiBrienza and Fisher.

         22  The resolutions call upon the MTA to reconsider its

         23  plan to terminate G Line services at Court Square at

         24  Long Island City and to hold public hearings in the

         25  communities, which the G train currently serves and
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          2  to seek an independent review.  The G train serves a

          3  vital corridor with increased ridership, but the MTA

          4  says that it must make space for our new line, the V

          5  Line, and for this reason there is not enough track

          6  space to run the G Line to Queens Plaza, they're

          7  wrong.  They have sufficient capacity to run both

          8  trains on the existing track and I am confident that

          9  an independent review would support this conclusion.

         10    I note that the MTA has just postponed their

         11  expected vote on the G Line changes.  Hopefully, a

         12  re- evaluation is underway.  In our view the only

         13  possible result will be a decision not to cut G Line

         14  service, given the technical feasibility of

         15  maintaining service and the community needs which

         16  have been identified.  We know that the TA can run a

         17  G train every 5th train through that tunnel for a

         18  total of six G trains per hour.

         19                 Resolution 1840 would ask the MTA to

         20  reconsider its plans to bypass the Grand Street

         21  Station on the Lower East Side, is also before you

         22  sponsored by Speaker Vallone and Council Member

         23  Freed.  The rerouting of the B, D, and Q Lines to

         24  bypass the station will affect 600,000 riders each

         25  day, and it will mean a devastating blow for
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          2  families and small businesses in Chinatown, many of

          3  which depend on regular subway service to and from

          4  communities in Brooklyn, especially Sunset Park.

          5                 What can be done?  The Grand Street

          6  Coalition and others have made suggestions which are

          7  practical, sensible, such as extending shuttle bus

          8  service between effected areas in Brooklyn and Grand

          9  Street.  We are happy to see that this process has

         10  been rustled, that in this process some bus shuttle

         11  service has been rustled from the Transit Authority.

         12    But further they can run shuttle bus services

         13  north bound to West Fourth and to 34th Street. The M

         14  Line should run on a 24- hour basis making express

         15  stops. This is a sensible solution, but the MTA has

         16  not supported it. Further, if these remedies are not

         17  put in place, we will see the inevitable rise of

         18  illegal van operations posing an increase in road

         19  traffic, a risk to public safety, and a threat to

         20  the Transit System.

         21                 The MTA and the New York City Transit

         22  Authority have also turned a deaf ear to community

         23  concerns in Bay Ridge, Brooklyn, where Council

         24  Member Marty Golden has held public forums about the

         25  X- 27 Bus.  Over 150 community members packed a Bay
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          2  Ridge Manor recently calling upon the Transit

          3  Authority to add more express bus service to

          4  Manhattan.  They have responded by adding more

          5  buses, temporarily.  We need a more permanent

          6  solution and review of the buses, which are used,

          7  which are problematic because of their very narrow

          8  aisles and no rear door.  The crowding on buses on

          9  this route threatens the health and safety of

         10  operators and passengers alike.

         11                 A serious gas leak, which made the TV

         12  news, occurred early this month at Jackie Gleason

         13  Depot, which is located on 38th Street in Sunset

         14  Park.  General Manager, Bill Livingston neglected to

         15  even disclose the leak to a visiting delegation of

         16  community and elected officials present at the depot

         17  at the time of the leak and thereby chose to put

         18  them all at risk.  Then TA representatives refused

         19  to appear at a community forum in the neighborhood

         20  called to examine the safety record at the facility

         21  in light of numerous violations, which the union has

         22  documented over the past few months.  I distributed

         23  a packet to the members of the Committee documenting

         24  the sorry safety record at this facility.

         25                 This past Saturday, there was yet
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          2  another major leak which required the closing of the

          3  surrounding streets of the Sunset Park area by the

          4  New York City Fire Department.  Yet, they continue

          5  to assure us that the facility is perfectly safe.

          6  The MTA continues to take an indefensible stand,

          7  refusing to put 24- hour monitors in place.

          8                 If Jackie Gleason were still alive,

          9  I'm sure he would join me in saying, we don't want

         10  to see our depot sent boom, zoom, straight to the

         11  moon, by a gas explosion, we just want to put safety

         12  first for our members and the people of Sunset Park.

         13                 Riders, legislators and the people

         14  who operate your buses and trains must be part of

         15  the planning process so that the MTA does not make

         16  changes administratively without due consideration

         17  of alternative ideas.  And open planning process

         18  would have given an opportunity for a give and take

         19  with the Transit Authority and the community.

         20  Today's major article in the New York Times about

         21  overcrowding on our bus lines and the NTA failure

         22  thus far to add sufficient service is yet another

         23  indication of the problem.  The MTA moves slowly to

         24  address the concerns of the riding public, a $7

         25  billion organization can and must be held
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          2  accountable, be held to a higher standard.  The MTA

          3  operates with public funds, let them be accountable

          4  to the public.

          5                 Again, I would like to thank you for

          6  holding this hearing and your time.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We gave you, just

          8  for you to understand, we gave you that extra time

          9  because you represent a large constituency and

         10  because of the union, respect to you, so I just

         11  wanted to acknowledge that.

         12                 MR. WATT:  We appreciate that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Okay,

         14  again, for the other people testifying, please,

         15  limit to the three minutes, when you hear that

         16  sound, the noise, the bell, just conclude your

         17  testimony.

         18                 Don Lee.

         19                 MR. LEE:  Good afternoon.  I do have

         20  a prepared statement, but I'm going to be really

         21  brief in respect for everyone here.  The bottom line

         22  is, the question was asked before, what is the

         23  transportation- wise going to be for people who come

         24  from Brooklyn?  You mentioned that when you get down

         25  to Rockefeller Center, it's a block away.  What he
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          2  neglected to mention to you is that if people need

          3  to get to Grand Street using that same train, what

          4  would happen is that they would go to 34th Street,

          5  take the Downtown train down switch twice to get to

          6  Grand Street.

          7                 So it is easy to paint a rosy

          8  picture, but what we want is the truth.  What we

          9  want is the City Council and a lot of our experts

         10  show who have come out and said we support the

         11  community actually take some actions.  Public

         12  hearings are great, I think that, you know, staff

         13  working, we have been to so many meetings where,

         14  again, to rid of what has been said before, all they

         15  want to do is to listen and consider, well it is

         16  time for action.  These are specific issues clearly

         17  they did not do their homework, they did not even

         18  have the time to look at the most recent article

         19  that said Canal Street is the most dangerous street

         20  in New York City in Manhattan.  There were 164

         21  pedestrian accidents in the last two years.  How do

         22  we deal with that?  Is putting 27,000 riders on

         23  Canal Street the way to go?

         24                 There are issues beyond just public

         25  transportation, there are public safety concerns and
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          2  we hope that elected officials and members of this

          3  Council to really support us and to push forward and

          4  make sure that things happen.  There is too much

          5  fingerpointing, we hear and see it time and time

          6  again, because the DOT is such, you know,

          7  disingenuous when they say to you that they are

          8  suffering.  They are paying money from his pocket,

          9  guess where the money is coming from, the MetroCard

         10  that we use, we pay for those services.  It is

         11  outrageous that what they have come to say to us

         12  that it is their money, it's our money, we pay for

         13  it, we deserve the service that we demand.  That is

         14  the bottom line.

         15                 And I thank you for the opportunity

         16  to speak, and I hope that you continuously support

         17  us and push forward real concrete issues and real

         18  suggestions and make things happen.  We talk enough,

         19  we're speaking enough, and quite frankly, we are

         20  tired.  It's up to you, the elected officials to

         21  help us move this piece forward.  Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  We

         24  will continue to push this as much as the efforts

         25  that we can put into this.  I'm not the Governor
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          2  that I can call the MTA Chair and tell him to

          3  postpone a hearing, I wish I was.  That clout we do

          4  not have that one, but we will push this issue, and

          5  as the President of the Transit Authority indicated,

          6  he will meet with our staff, and I'm going to demand

          7  staff and direct staff to look at this issue that

          8  you just raised, as well.

          9                 MR. LEE:  And it is also for, one

         10  other thing, the DOT and the City is also

         11  responsible.  I mean, it is outrageous that the

         12  Mayor says that, you know, yet the MTA says that we

         13  work closely with them, but I remember distinctively

         14  when the Mayor says that he had no knowledge of this

         15  issue.  So, are they working or are they not

         16  working, it comes into question?

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay. Gene

         19  Russianoff.

         20                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  Good afternoon,

         21  Chairman Dear and members of the Committee and

         22  staff.  I'm Gene Russianoff with the Straphangers

         23  Campaign.  I have a written statement, and I too

         24  will be brief.

         25                 My statement really echoes what I
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          2  think is the theme of both Council members in their

          3  questions today and the other people testifying,

          4  which is that the changes that are the subject of

          5  the resolution, virtual closing of Grand Street and

          6  Chinatown and the elimination of 13 stops on the G

          7  were made without adequately consulting with those

          8  affected.

          9                 I thought it was particularly telling

         10  when Council Member McCaffrey asked the President of

         11  the Transit Authority if he knew what was happening

         12  in the Queens Boulevard area and what the impact of

         13  these changes to the G would be to that community?

         14  And you know, he said, well, he knows that there is

         15  stuff going on, that is what he said.  And I just do

         16  not think that you can run an agency, you can run

         17  the transit system as if it is some lines on the map

         18  without having a much better system for talking to

         19  and communicating with the communities and the

         20  riders that are affected.

         21                 I would note that it is true that the

         22  New York City Transit has, there is a staff person,

         23  at least one or two, very honorable people who are

         24  here.  The Chief Planner for the project left, and

         25  to me that speaks volumes for how much the agency
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          2  has made up its mind.

          3                 Anyway, in my testimony I detail the

          4  kinds of things that the Straphangers Campaign would

          5  like to see in dealing with both the Grand Street

          6  issue and with the G train.  I'm not going to go

          7  into detail, but I do want to say that I was very

          8  disappointed to hear President Reuter say that he

          9  had basically rejected what is, I believe, the best

         10  mitigation for the Grand Street closing, which is to

         11  provide beefed up service on the M train line,

         12  either an M express, and certainly midday M service.

         13    I think we need more than just an assertion by him

         14  that these are not possible or worth not doing.  Are

         15  you talking about people's lives, their businesses,

         16  their ability to get to day care, mobility of senior

         17  citizens?  So that is important.

         18                 One other point I would make, is that

         19  I was also very heartened to hear Speaker Vallone

         20  say that the Council would be calling City

         21  Transportation Officials, I assume, before this

         22  Committee to explain why the bridge repair is going

         23  to take three to four years.  And are they really

         24  working hard enough to do it fast enough?

         25                 I really don't think either the City

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  or the MTA is agonizing enough and really understood

          3  what the impact of this community is.  The MTA is

          4  sort of frozen in time in 1988 with very little

          5  awareness about what the world is like in these

          6  communities.             I would also like to hear

          7  what the City has to say about any plans for

          8  economic assistance to the Grand Street area, either

          9  small business loans or advice, because there is

         10  going to be an impact, and I think those kinds of

         11  things, whatever mitigation is done, the City has a

         12  responsibility more than just for the Mayor to

         13  simply criticize the MTA for its bad outreach.  The

         14  Mayor is right about that, but the City has a role

         15  here too.

         16                 Tonight we will be participating in

         17  the rally at Court Square for the G train.  I'm

         18  hoping that the Transit System is sincere about

         19  their test.  I think like the TWU thinks that they

         20  can continue G train service, and with your help and

         21  this Committee's eternal vigilance, hopefully the

         22  Transit System will be more responsive to these

         23  communities and to the riders than they have been to

         24  date.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Steve

          3  Weber.

          4                 MR. WEBER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          5  My name is Steve Weber, and I am a Senior

          6  Transportation Planner at Regional Plan Association,

          7  the nation's oldest independent planning

          8  organization.  I'm here to testify on New York City

          9  Transit's proposed plan for the 63rd Street Tunnel,

         10  specifically how it will impact G service.

         11                 I would like to thank you for

         12  convening this hearing and for considering the needs

         13  of the people who ride our subways. I would also

         14  like to thank Councilman DiBrienza, Councilwoman

         15  Pinkett, and Councilman Fisher for the attention

         16  that they have directed to this issue.

         17                 RPA believes that New York City

         18  Transit should amend this plan to allow for

         19  continued operation of the G train to Forest Hills.

         20  This would preserve crucial subway service for

         21  residents and other subway riders who travel between

         22  Brooklyn and Queens Boulevard, or who transfer to a

         23  Manhattan- bound train at Queens Plaza.  We cannot

         24  recall a previous instance where New York City

         25  Transit has proposed such a drastic service
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          2  reduction on a line that has seen a 20 percent boost

          3  in ridership over the previous five years.

          4                 This decision was finalized in 1994

          5  with a federal record of decision for the Queens

          6  connector.  It formalized the results of a series of

          7  studies that examined a variety of options for new

          8  subway lines in Queens, which would have preserved

          9  the G train on Queens Boulevard, but they were

         10  ultimately objected because of cost and community

         11  concerns.  While the MTA decided to abandon these

         12  lines, or when the MTA decided to abandon these

         13  lines, they decided to reassign the track capacity

         14  used by the G train to the new service that would

         15  become the B.  A tough choice, but they justified

         16  because of the G's low ridership at that time. Such

         17  decisions are usually final unless there are

         18  unforeseen changes to the environment and the

         19  community.  The situation we face here is an

         20  unforeseen rebirth of the neighborhoods of Northern

         21  Brooklyn.

         22                 I would like to thank Governor Pataki

         23  and Chairman Kalikow for recognizing the

         24  implications of this growth, and for directing staff

         25  to find a solution that serves all parties.  And I
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          2  would like to also concur with Councilman

          3  McCaffrey's point that the MTA's analysis in 1994

          4  clearly did not anticipate the growth of businesses

          5  and employment in the Queens Plaza area.

          6                 It is true that the G train is not

          7  one of the high volume, packed to the point of

          8  bursting, subway lines that carry people to

          9  Manhattan.  However, over 40,000 riders from

         10  Northern Brooklyn rely on it, and for them it is the

         11  only subway that they have.  Eighty percent of the

         12  people who live in Greenpoint and commute to

         13  Manhattan use the G train to get to work.  The MTA's

         14  proposal will make, it will actually make a bad

         15  situation even worse, by forcing riders to walk

         16  several hundred feet between the G and the E and the

         17  V trains at Court square, and then asking them to

         18  transfer to Manhattan- bound trains that will

         19  already be packed with riders.

         20                 And I'm afraid that I must disagree

         21  with Mr. Reuter's claim, this is not a benefit for

         22  those riders, and in fact, there is no transfer for

         23  the R train at Court Square, so those riders will be

         24  cut off.

         25                 RPA does not think that this
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          2  displacement is necessary.  New York City Transit

          3  has said that they have capacity to run 26 trains

          4  per hour on the local tracks of the Queens Boulevard

          5  Line.  Their current plan is to run a total of 21 R

          6  and V trains in the AM rush hour.  Continued G train

          7  service means an additional six trains for a total

          8  of 27 in the rush hour, one train above their

          9  practical limit.  Surely we can find a way to deal

         10  with this one train and provide irreplaceable subway

         11  service to all of the neighborhoods who depend on

         12  it.

         13                 Thank you, and I will be happy to

         14  answer your questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.

         16  Dobrow.

         17                 MR. DOBROW:  I am Stephen Dobrow,

         18  President of the Committee for Better Transit, a

         19  transit consumer group since 1962. I want to thank

         20  the Council for having this hearing.  We want to

         21  point out the fact that what we're talking about

         22  today is really been characteristic of the TA over

         23  the last half century.  So its track record is not

         24  good.

         25                 The TA is guilty of not paying
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          2  attention to its riders.  At a public hearing in

          3  1990, on 63rd Street, most speakers were against the

          4  plan or had serious reservations.  They noted the

          5  bypassing of the developing area around Queens

          6  Plaza, disruption of current travel patterns,

          7  reduced transfer connectivity, failure to develop

          8  mainline capacity in Queens, and dependability

          9  issues.  But the TA paid no attention, the TA said,

         10  we will re- look at the G train issue, it did not,

         11  conveniently forgot over the last decades. The

         12  federal government paid for three academic studies

         13  of the tunnel connections.  Alternatives were

         14  suggested, the TA ignored them.   So here we are

         15  with a service plan that is a decade out of date,

         16  but not as good as the one that even known that

         17  increase. There is only local service being

         18  increased to bring us into Manhattan, which does not

         19  really help too much, moving their express service

         20  to other lines, does not help too much, diversion,

         21  an actual 20 percent cut in service in the 53rd

         22  Street Tunnel and the Brooklyn/Queens Crosstown G

         23  cutback.

         24                 When the TA originally announced the

         25  63rd Street Connection, it talked about 30 transfer
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          2  out to Manhattan with Queens local tracks.  Yet over

          3  the last decade it has cut R service, and now it is

          4  only running about 20 or 21 local trains. This plan

          5  means there is room for the six G trains that run to

          6  Brooklyn and continue their benefit to Greenpoint

          7  and Williamsburg. Of course, this is why we fought,

          8  anyone with a memory may remember the Chrystie

          9  Street Project from the 1960s that ran 90 trains per

         10  hour through DeKalb Avenue, which never happened.

         11                 Then we have, of course, the other

         12  issue of long term temporary service diversions, and

         13  really their is a need for hearings on anything over

         14  six months.  Back in the 1980s, it temporarily

         15  discontinued overnight through R service due to

         16  construction project, never bothered to restore it.

         17                 The TA is guilty again of not

         18  planning ahead. It knew over the last decade that at

         19  some point it would have a problem with Grand

         20  Street, yet, it never took the opportunity to add a

         21  crossover so that through trains from the north

         22  could be run instead of shuttles.

         23                 Coming from the south causes a bigger

         24  problem, yet, only after riders complained did they

         25  even think of shuttle buses.            Of course,
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          2  the best solution is probably running M service 24

          3  hours a day, and we do have the note of the secret

          4  cutback in weekend West End service where we only

          5  recently discovered that it would only run to

          6  Pacific Street.  And of course, even today, they did

          7  not tell you to change to the Q train over the

          8  bridge, you would have to walk a long distance to

          9  get to Atlantic Avenue.

         10                 And of course, there are other

         11  projects going on, maybe we better know more now

         12  about the service curtailments planned due to

         13  construction Stillwell Avenue, only for a period, I

         14  think, it was nine months, only the West End train

         15  will go there, and of course that is the one that is

         16  not going to go to Manhattan on weekends.

         17                 And we have consultants telling the

         18  TA Speed Projects, riders do not count.  And we have

         19  the issue of secrets now, I mean, in the past it

         20  once denied and made a service cut after it

         21  happened.  It once denied a service cutting, even

         22  though the signs were on the platform, they're not

         23  quite so bad now.  But only managed to keep the

         24  secret of the W train not running to Manhattan on

         25  weekends, and still has not told us whether running
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          2  the W to Astoria would mean an N service reduction.

          3                 And of course, the TA always reviews

          4  things and figures out why they're not possible,

          5  instead of trying to really solve problems.

          6                 In any case, we need hearings and

          7  more cases, we need detailed schedules made

          8  available for review, and some outside body should

          9  review what they do on a regular basis, not the City

         10  Council, which has done plenty of hearings, but that

         11  is not a continuing, what should not be a continuing

         12  job for the City Council, it should be some other

         13  agency doing the job.

         14                 And I want to thank you for the

         15  chance to speak about this issue.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Pat

         17  Ferris.

         18                 MS. FERRIS:  Good afternoon.  My name

         19  is Pat Ferris, and I'm here representing State

         20  Senator Martin Connor, and I will be reading his

         21  testimony, I will start right now.

         22                  "While I was happy to hear that in

         23  response to public outcry, the MTA Board will re-

         24  examine its proposed changes in subway service, I am

         25  extremely concerned about the proposed changes in G

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            124

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  train service and those measures being undertaken to

          3  facilitate reconstruction of the Manhattan Bridge.

          4                 I oppose the proposed elimination of

          5  direct service on the G Line to stops beyond Court

          6  Square.  This drastic measure will have an adverse

          7  effect on Williamsburg, Greenpoint and other

          8  Brooklyn communities.  Over 100,000 commuters ride

          9  the G train every day.  While outdated studies have

         10  been used to justify the proposed cuts, more recent

         11  numbers show a more than 34 percent increase in

         12  ridership in recent years despite prior MTA cutbacks

         13  in service.  The communities along the G Line have

         14  experienced a great deal of residential growth and

         15  economic development during this time.  It would be

         16  unconscionable to truncate G Line service.  This

         17  proposal is made worse by the fact that Court Square

         18  is an extremely inconvenient transfer point,

         19  requiring a long walk through an underground tunnel

         20  using narrow staircases.

         21                 It has been almost 10 years since the

         22  MTA began planning for changes related to the

         23  construction of the 63rd Street Connector between

         24  Queens and Manhattan, a proposal which I support.

         25  This construction has been cited by the New York
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          2  City Transit as justification for cutting the G down

          3  to a shuttle service. However, transportation

          4  planners believe that there is capacity to insert G

          5  trains at least as far as Forest Hills.  G service

          6  must continue to extend into Queens to preserve the

          7  ability of passengers to have a direct route between

          8  Brooklyn and Queens.

          9                 If the proposed G cuts are

         10  instituted, there will be further overcrowding in

         11  Manhattan.  The proposal will result in additional

         12  transfers from the G to the L train and at

         13  overcrowded Metropolitan Avenue and Lorimer Street

         14  Station during rush hours. Residents of this area

         15  are already complaining about having to wait for

         16  several Manhattan- bound L trains to pass before

         17  they can board a train.

         18                 In addition to the G train cuts, the

         19  elimination of service for the B, D, and Q trains to

         20  the Grand Street and Broadway/Lafayette Stations, as

         21  well as other stations along 6th Avenue, would

         22  create hardships for my constituents and thousands

         23  of New Yorkers.  It would create an onerous burden

         24  onto he Chinatown and Lower East Side communities

         25  and also negatively impact many Brooklyn residents.
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          2  Adequate mitigation must be implemented for the loss

          3  of service this proposal would entail.  I appreciate

          4  the addition of a shuttle bus between Canal Street

          5  and Grand Street Stations, but I must note that the

          6  riders use Grand Street to travel at all hours of

          7  the day, not just during peak hours when the shuttle

          8  is scheduled to run.  Many workers take their

          9  infants and young children with them on the train

         10  from Brooklyn and bring them to day care or

         11  relatives' apartments while they are at work.

         12  Augmenting service on various New York City Transit

         13  bus routes may help to alleviate some of the

         14  problems created by the proposed changes, but many

         15  riders may opt to use the illegal vans which work

         16  the Chinatown/Canal Street area, further congesting

         17  the already crowded streets.  And increase in the

         18  use of private vans would also mean a loss of

         19  revenue for the New York City Transit.

         20                 It is clear that the shuttle service

         21  proposed between the Grand Street and

         22  Broadway/Lafayette Stations cannot alone handle the

         23  volumes of riders who need service.  New York City

         24  Transit should extend the shuttle further north to

         25  the other stations, such as West 4th Street, where

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  there are additional options for transfers.  I also

          3  recommend that the New York City Transit increase

          4  service on the M Line beyond the existing morning

          5  and afternoon peak hours, peak service.  The Bowery

          6  Station on the M Line is only two blocks from the

          7  Grand Street Station.  Changes in the communities on

          8  the M train corridor now justify 24 hours a day

          9  service.  There has been a great deal of economic

         10  growth in the area where Chinatown and the Lower

         11  East Side meet.  Many people who work in this area

         12  live in Brooklyn communities along the M train

         13  route.  In the past, New York City Transit has

         14  conducted the sort of marketing campaigns, which

         15  would ensure that this service would be utilized in

         16  numbers which would justify its costs.  With many

         17  people using the M Line service in this area, the

         18  stations along the line would also become safer.

         19  New York City Transit might also want to explore

         20  having the M train run express in Brooklyn.

         21                 The proposed series of service

         22  changes and the concomitant confusion about which

         23  letter represents which train route will result in a

         24  disorganized pattern of service and inconvenience to

         25  the New York City Transit ridership.  Only more
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          2  community outreach and a better marketing plan can

          3  help alleviate this situation.  Given the issues

          4  related to the long- term reliability of the

          5  Manhattan Bridge to continue to carry subway

          6  service, I also recommend that the MTA work with the

          7  New York City DOT to set up an ongoing program to

          8  monitor the impact of the train operations on the

          9  bridge.  The MTA might also want to consider

         10  constructing the DeKalb/Rutgers Tunnel to provide a

         11  connection to serve as an alternative East River

         12  Crossing, which could be used when work is scheduled

         13  on the Manhattan Bridge."

         14                 Thank you so much for your time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.  Kathy Liu.

         16  I know that I allow certain people to go over the

         17  three minutes, it's only because they're elected

         18  officials, those who represent elected officials, so

         19  I gave them that courtesy, but I'm asking that the

         20  others, please, when you hear the bell just to

         21  curtail, to finish up your remarks.

         22                 MS. LIU:  Thank you.  My name is

         23  Kathy Liu.  I am resident of Chinatown and a student

         24  of Hunter College.  I am also a member of the

         25  Committee Against Anti- Asian Violence.
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          2                 BDQ trains are the main mode of

          3  transportation for the Chinese community in

          4  Brooklyn.  People use it to go to work, school and

          5  shop.  If the MTA closes the BDQ service for the

          6  next four years, Chinatown's workers will have

          7  difficulties to travel to their workplaces on time;

          8  students will have to spend more time to get to

          9  school, which will affect their health by having

         10  less sleep; older people need to take the subway to

         11  Chinatown, but they don't know much English, so it's

         12  much harder for them to change to other trains

         13  properly.

         14                 At the same time, local businesses

         15  will be affected tremendously.  Workers, students,

         16  and the elderly come to stores on Grand Street to

         17  shop for their daily needs, but if the station is

         18  shut down, people would not come to this area to

         19  shop.  That means the local businesses will suffer,

         20  and more seriously they will be forced to shut their

         21  businesses down, which may lead to large- scale

         22  displacement and gentrification in Chinatown.

         23                 On the shuttle buses from Canal

         24  Street to Grand Street as a solution is absolutely

         25  unacceptable.  This will add to traffic congestion

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  and air pollution, it would probably be faster to

          3  walk from Canal to Grand Street rather than take the

          4  bus.

          5                 I think not only do we need an

          6  Economic Impact Analysis, we need an Environmental

          7  Impact Analysis too.

          8                 My cousin's grandmother lives in

          9  Brooklyn and she does not speak English at all.  If

         10  the Grand Street BDQ Station is closed down, she

         11  will have difficulties to come to Chinatown to visit

         12  us.  She does not know how to transfer, which means

         13  every time she wants to come out, someone will need

         14  to come with her, and that is very inconvenient for

         15  her and her family.

         16                 I think the MTA is racist.  If this

         17  happened in the Upper East Side or other wealthy

         18  white communities, would the MTA decide to close the

         19  main subway station for four years without any input

         20  from the community?  I think the answer would

         21  definitely be no.

         22                 Therefore, I urge the City Council to

         23  intervene and join Chinatown in telling the MTA:  Do

         24  not shut down the BDQ service on Grand Street,

         25  unless the MTA can prove to us by making information
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          2  public that closing it for four years is the only

          3  way it can repair the bridge.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Henry

          6  Chung.

          7                 MR. CHUNG:  I'm Henry Chung, the

          8  President of CCBA. Four years to repair the bridge

          9  is too long, we demand a better plan.  Shutting the

         10  building down to run down to one, two years. We

         11  demand that the MTA to provide enough shuttle train

         12  and bus service to and from Canal Street.

         13                 I would like to submit my reading

         14  statement to you.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you, and

         17  thank you for your testimony.  We will make this

         18  part of the record.  Thank you.  And please forgive

         19  me, I should have called you before, we did not know

         20  until you identified yourself as the President of

         21  the CCBA, so I'm glad that you did, and we will work

         22  with you to see what we can do to help you, as well.

         23    And I will make sure that staff does work with

         24  you.

         25                 Okay, next is David Reck.  He left.
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          2  Okay, Paul Lee.

          3                 MR. LEE:  Hi, my name is Paul Lee.  I

          4  have a business in Chinatown.  I think we have

          5  beaten to death all the issues, you guys know why

          6  we're here.  I want to thank you for having the

          7  hearing.  I just mention one thing, at this point, I

          8  personally attended many public hearings for the

          9  MTA, not the official public hearing, but their

         10  informational hearings.  We do not know why they're

         11  afraid to have an official public hearing with the

         12  public.

         13                 But the bottom line is, the one

         14  person that I now see who is not here, who can do

         15  something, and I implore the City Council to use

         16  their influence as best they can, is Governor

         17  Pataki.  And I think the Chair said this over and

         18  over himself, he has not been here, he has not given

         19  a damn.  He will go to other parts of the United

         20  States and talk about issues that I'm sure are

         21  important, but we have an economic bomb going off on

         22  us in the Grand Street area, it affects Chinatown,

         23  it affects all our neighbors, again mentioned

         24  earlier by the City Council, our Jewish, Hispanic,

         25  African- American neighbors, our neighbors in Bay
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          2  Ridge. I testified in Bay Ridge.

          3                 So there is a deep concern here.  I

          4  would urge my neighbors to remember this when he

          5  runs again for Governor, that he did not give a

          6  squat about us.  And I urge the City Council to

          7  please urge him to help us with this.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  As you know, we

         10  held this hearing deliberately to be helpful to the

         11  community and we will continue fighting it the best

         12  we can.

         13                 MR. LEE:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  John Fratta.

         15                 MR. FRATTA:  Good afternoon.  I want

         16  to thank you, Chairman Dear, for holding this public

         17  hearing.  Unfortunately, this hearing would not have

         18  been necessary had the MTA done their job.

         19                 Originally this project, originally

         20  the focus of this project was on the MTA, was on the

         21  Department of Transportation.  We knew that the work

         22  on the bridge had to be done, although, I question

         23  how for 20 years they're working on a bridge, they

         24  could have built a new one in that amount of time.

         25  And I really do think we need an investigation into
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          2  this whole project.  However, everything focuses

          3  back to the MTA because of their arrogance.  Their

          4  refusal to hold a public hearing, their refusal for

          5  everything that we have asked them to do.

          6                 We asked for a shuttle bus service

          7  from Grand Street over to DeKalb Avenue, which we

          8  felt would have been more effective.  Canal Street

          9  is jammed packed, but from DeKalb Avenue you go

         10  right over the Manhattan Bridge, you're there.  They

         11  refused that.

         12                 We asked them to expand service on

         13  the M train, which everyone says they can do it,

         14  except them.  They're the only ones that do not know

         15  it can be done.

         16                 We have also asked them to enhance

         17  the Bowery Street Station, which right now is a very

         18  dingy, unsafe station.  We asked for more police

         19  over there and for more lighting in that station.

         20  They refused that, they have not done that yet.

         21                 So everything we have asked them to

         22  do, they did diddly for our community.  They keep on

         23  talking about four years being temporary, but you

         24  tell that to the businesses along Grand Street how

         25  temporary that is going to be, they're going to be
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          2  put out of business permanently, so that four years

          3  is going to have an impact.  Plus the fact knowing

          4  the MTA and knowing the Department of

          5  Transportation, four years becomes 20 years.

          6                 I'm also, in another life, I'm a

          7  District Manager for a Community Board, dealing with

          8  the MTA on a daily basis.  And I'm telling you, the

          9  only way I can get them to do something that they're

         10  supposed to do under the law is by embarrassing them

         11  with the press, because they do not care about

         12  communities and they do not care about people.

         13                 So I really want to thank you and

         14  appreciate any help you could give us.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Margaret Chung, I

         17  guess she is gone.  Rocky Chin.

         18                 MR. CHIN:  Good afternoon, Chairman

         19  Dear.  It's very late in the day, so I'm also going

         20  to just make a few brief remarks.

         21                 I am Rocky Chin.  I'm a 20- year

         22  resident of the Lower East Side, I'm a Civil Rights

         23  Attorney, a City Planner, a member of the GRAND

         24  Coalition, I'm also a candidate for City Council in

         25  this district.
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          2                 The point I would like to go to in my

          3  testimony actually goes to the responsibility of the

          4  City Council and maybe we can kind of focus on that.

          5    We appreciate the City Council and the

          6  Transportation Committee for having this oversight

          7  hearing. You mentioned earlier the Department of

          8  Transportation may be coming in, and I guess the

          9  question I have, is when can they come in and can

         10  you let us know and give us a date, because we

         11  really think that one of the problems is that the

         12  MTA passes the buck back and forth between the DOT.

         13  Both agencies should be accountable to elected

         14  officials, and as said earlier we want some answers.

         15                 For example, we want to find out from

         16  the DOT what is the problem with the Manhattan

         17  Bridge, why is it taking so long, can they provide

         18  documentation?  You have the power to subpoena

         19  information from the DOT, we suggest that you do

         20  that and make that available to the public.

         21                 We also know that the Chief Engineer

         22  was involved in and discredited, and that has, we

         23  don't know whether that any impact in terms of the

         24  initial assessment as to the Manhattan Bridge

         25  schedule.  But what steps has Commissioner Weinshall
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          2  taken, if any, to address the concerns of the GRAND

          3  Coalition since taking office?  And these are some

          4  of the questions we would like Commissioner

          5  Weinshall to answer.

          6                 Now not long ago, Sheldon Silver, the

          7  Speaker who represents this district, had an

          8  official public hearing, and this is something, of

          9  course, the MTA has refused to do.  So we have all

         10  said that we are outraged about this, but we hope

         11  that the Speaker's hearing will also result in

         12  concrete recommendations to the DOT and the MTA.

         13  Because what we are hearing, Chairman Dear, is that

         14  the MTA and the DOT are beholding unto nobody and

         15  that is absolutely something that you know is not

         16  true.  They are beholding to the people and our

         17  elected representatives, such as the City Council,

         18  such as the Mayor and the Governor.

         19                 So what we have been doing the last

         20  couple of weeks is we have been pamphleting Grand

         21  Street and telling people to call the Governor.  The

         22  silence from the Governor's Office is deafening. The

         23  Governor has to take a position, what is his

         24  position?  We believe that the Governor's time to

         25  act is now, and we also call on the Mayor to take,
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          2  to step forward and to resolve some of this.

          3                 So thank you very much and we will

          4  continue to work with you.  Please let us know when

          5  the DOT is coming in.  We would like this to happen

          6  sooner than later.  We have not had an opportunity

          7  to really to hear from the DOT Commissioner.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Omar

         10  Freilla, gone. Mae Lee, is that you?

         11                 MS. LEE:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.

         13                 MS. LEE:  I was just about to leave,

         14  so I'm glad you called.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Go ahead.

         16                 MS. LEE:  My name is Mae Lee.  I'm

         17  the Executive Director of the Chinese Progressive

         18  Association.  We're also a member of the GRAND

         19  Coalition.  Our office is located three blocks

         20  southeast of the Grand Street Station, so that is

         21  outside of the area in between Canal and Grand

         22  Street that the MTA likes to talk about.  Many of

         23  our members, our staff and our clients use the

         24  station to access our office.  We have been in this

         25  location for about 10 years now, and let me tell you
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          2  that the area outside of that orange boarder is a

          3  growing, thriving area.  There are a lot of

          4  residents who live there, there are new stores, a

          5  new restaurant, and new social service organization

          6  who have moved in there.

          7                 As you know, many of the, you know,

          8  residents of the community have been to several

          9  different hearings and meetings, but not one, you

         10  know, not one official, not one gathering has been

         11  an official public hearing.  The MTA has not taken

         12  any of our requests seriously.  For example, in a

         13  written document for the request, when we requested

         14  shuttle service between Brooklyn and Grand Street,

         15  they say, well all the people will go to Canal

         16  Street. Well they will go to Canal Street, if there

         17  is no train going to Grand Street, and it is untrue

         18  that everyone, that most people's destination is

         19  between Canal and Grand.

         20                 While we think it is really the MTA's

         21  responsibility to hold the public hearing, it is

         22  good to hear that there is a resolution before City

         23  Council to hold a hearing of its own.  But the main

         24  thing that we would like you to remember is that we

         25  have a hearing that is accessible to the community.
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          2  I mean, today was a meeting, it was a good meeting,

          3  but it was during the day and not everyone was able

          4  to be here.  But the main thing, also, is that we

          5  want to have a meeting that will effectively do

          6  something to open the lines of communications

          7  between us and the Public Transportation officials.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay.

          9                 MS. LEE:  Thanks.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We're doing that

         11  by having this hearing here and our staff, you're

         12  welcome to meet with our staff, which is going to

         13  end up meeting with the Transit Authority to see if

         14  we can come up with some resolution.

         15                 MS. LEE:  Yes, okay, great.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  You be

         17  in touch with our Counsel.

         18                 Henry Chung, that is you, oh, these

         19  people fill out twice.  Diana Calderon Ngui.  Thank

         20  you for waiting so patiently, I'm sorry.

         21                 MS. CALDERON NGUI:  Thank you for

         22  having this meeting today.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You're welcome.

         24                 MS. CALDERON NGUI:  My name is Diana

         25  Calderon Ngui and I'm a Greenpoint resident who
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          2  regularly uses the G train.  Our MTA in its wisdom

          3  of wanting to improve services in our Borough have

          4  come up with a plan to drop 13 stops of G Line that

          5  run beyond Court Square into Queens 24 hours a day,

          6  seven days a week beginning August of this year.

          7                 Previous testimonies submitted to

          8  MTA's only public hearing on January 23rd described

          9  in detail the burden communities would face on these

         10  proposed service changes.  All passengers, students,

         11  elderly, physically handicapped and parents with

         12  small children would be required to climb narrow

         13  staircases, walk through a 500- foot corridor and

         14  climb down another flight of stairs to make

         15  transfers into areas further into Queens or

         16  Manhattan by the proposed V and E Lines.  Those

         17  passengers wishing to continue their destination

         18  further into Queens will lose their one- seat ride

         19  to Queens.

         20                 MTA's creation of a convoluted

         21  pathway to assist Queens' ridership into Manhattan

         22  and complicate Brooklyn users of the G train to

         23  Manhattan and Queens threatens all Brooklyn

         24  communities that share this line.  Acts like these

         25  and the increasing reality of losing even more
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          2  service threaten the development and potential of

          3  our neighborhoods.  These efforts are acts of

          4  discrimination, negligence, ignorance relative to

          5  our needs and our growth.

          6                 It is also important to acknowledge

          7  that the census data used to determine utilization

          8  and community impact is outdated and does not

          9  represent not only in numbers, but in cultural mix

         10  the true needs of this community.  A 10- year- old

         11  study without updates of current population can only

         12  prove disastrous in the development and growth for a

         13  community such as Greenpoint.  To perpetuate a lack

         14  of recognition through diminished transportation

         15  services, rather than focused service improvement is

         16  shortsighted and bound to fail.

         17                 On behalf of Greenpoint and other

         18  involved communities the Noble  Street Block

         19  Association and Friends vehemently opposes this

         20  plan.  The G train is our community's lifeline.  Our

         21  communities require full G train service and expect

         22  nothing less.  We promise we will raise our voices

         23  every day and use all means necessary to assure that

         24  we are recognized and satisfied with the outcome.

         25  Greenpoint and friends have linked arms in a united
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          2  effort to fight discrimination against underserved

          3  and immigrant communities.

          4                 One final note, we will be holding a

          5  demonstration this afternoon on this issue at 5 p.m.

          6  On Jackson Avenue at the Court Square G Train

          7  Station.  We extend an invitation to our political

          8  leaders throughout the City to join us in our fight

          9  against allowing this mistake to come to fruition.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 I also submit a testimony there on

         12  behalf of Queens Civic Congress.  I received it this

         13  morning and submit it for public record.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you, again,

         16  and we will be there for you.

         17                 Morris Faitelemez.

         18                 MR. FAITELEMEZ:  Maybe it is true, at

         19  least I would like to think, maybe we leave the best

         20  for last, I'm hoping.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Certainly,

         22  absolutely.

         23                 MR. FAITELEMEZ:  And I do not have a

         24  prepared statement, because I heard about this

         25  portion of the meeting in my car this morning, so
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          2  thank God for the radio, and I was asking the

          3  Council Member Freed and she mentioned to me that

          4  she notified the Community Board, but I did not get

          5  notified about this.

          6                 But I would like to say, as you know,

          7  over the years I have worked, I work very closely

          8  with Shelley and Marty Connor on these issues, and

          9  I'm not going to repeat everything that people said

         10  here, because it is very true.

         11                 I will take one issue though, which

         12  we are against in Community Board, I do not have an

         13  official statement from the Community Board, I am

         14  the Chair of Transportation and the Co- Chair of

         15  Public Safety, we are against van service,

         16  increasing van service in the community, as some

         17  speakers said, there is too much congestion in the

         18  area.  I am working with the Captain and the Deputy

         19  Inspector of the 5th Precinct to come up with some

         20  alternate locations for van stops for the

         21  enforcement of these legal vans. But again, we're

         22  against the whole issue of van service.

         23                 One of the main factors here is that

         24  the whole Lower East Side community is underserved,

         25  the whole Lower East Side community is underserved
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          2  by transit services.  We had the whole Massa Study

          3  and one of the things that we added and we thought

          4  was very good was increased bus service to the

          5  community.  As a matter of fact, Shelley, years ago,

          6  fought the elimination of the Grand Street

          7  Crosstown, which would have helped, which would have

          8  been a natural shuttle from Grand Street to the

          9  Canal Street Station, and that is one of the votes

         10  that we have taken.  We want the Massa Bus Study,

         11  the bus portion implemented besides the full Second

         12  Avenue Subway.

         13                 So the MTA is insensitive as a whole,

         14  they removed the Crosstown service, we're trying to

         15  get people uptown faster and the whole Lower East

         16  Side just does not have enough transportation. And

         17  here, obviously, there is a bad situation, the

         18  bridge has to be fixed, and instead of looking to

         19  work with the community, they are not.  One example

         20  is when they contacted the Community Board for this

         21  informational meeting, they talked to me and then

         22  they never got back to me, and they had a meeting

         23  without the Community Board. They just did an end

         24  run, they went to the Lower East Side BID, you know,

         25  and they arranged a meeting with them and did not
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          2  try to work with the Community Board which has

          3  access to the entire community. So we're quite

          4  aggravated with them about that issue.

          5                 And finally, you know, it's just an

          6  issue where the MTA, you know, they have to hold a

          7  public hearing.  You must force them, by law, you

          8  know, again, working with Shelley, obviously,

          9  because it is a statewide issue to force them to

         10  have public hearings.

         11                 Thank you very, very much, again for

         12  everything that you have done for this.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Okay,

         14  this concludes our hearing today, and we will

         15  continue with great diligence on this issue, and

         16  we're going to fight for the communities that we

         17  represent and for the City and for those people who

         18  are being underserved and are being deprived

         19  service, and we will continue on this.  And as we

         20  indicated staff will be meeting with the Transit

         21  Authority personnel, and we will also reach out to

         22  the community people that have attended this meeting

         23  and who have been interested in talking to us and we

         24  will take it from there to work with you to see if

         25  we can get some changes in this service.
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          2                 Thank you, this meeting is adjourned.

          3                 (The hearing was adjourned at 2:30

          4  p.m.)

          5                 (The following testimony was read

          6  into the record.)

          7

          8  Testimony of:

          9  Gene Russianoff

         10  Staff Attorney

         11  NYPIRG Straphangers Campaign

         12

         13                 Many riders and neighborhoods will be

         14  hurt by major changes in subway routes recently

         15  proposed by transit officials. These changes,

         16  including the virtually closing of the Grand Street

         17  Station in Chinatown and the elimination of 13 stops

         18  on the G Line were made without adequately

         19  consulting with those affected.

         20                 The riders and these communities are

         21  now looking to elected officials to have their

         22  concerns heard and addressed.

         23                 The W Line and Grand Street:

         24  Proposed subway route changes due to repairs on the

         25  Manhattan Bridge pose severe hardships for the
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          2  businesses and neighborhoods around Lower

          3  Manhattan's Grand Street subway station, which will

          4  effectively be closed for more than three years.

          5                 While transit officials say many

          6  riders will simply use the Canal Street subway stop

          7  on the proposed new W Line, that station is a

          8  minimum 10- to 15- minute walk from the Grand Street

          9  area.  In addition, Brooklyn riders will face

         10  miserable weekend commutes, as transit officials

         11  plan to terminate W service in Downtown Brooklyn on

         12  Saturdays and Sundays, requiring riders to take two

         13  trains each way into Manhattan.

         14                 The MTA says these changes are

         15  temporary and no hearing is needed for the public to

         16  voice concerns and get answers. The MTA is wrong.

         17                 These changes will impact more than

         18  half a million riders a day through 2004; two lines

         19  will be cut in half and the Grand Street subway

         20  station will be effectively shut down.  The agency

         21  has some policy choices in how it responds to the

         22  Manhattan Bridge repairs that are worthy of debate

         23  and discussion.  In its ads, the MTA says it's

         24   "Going Your Way," but the message here is "Your

         25  going Our Way, Like it or Not."
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          2                 The MTA should take action to

          3  minimize the impact of the Manhattan Bridge related

          4  changes, reducing the number of riders who would

          5  needlessly have to switch trains, take longer rides

          6  or arrive at out of the way stations.  Among the

          7  steps it should take are to:

          8                 Beef up nearby train service by

          9  running (1) an express M train service from

         10  Bensonhurst, Brooklyn to Lower Manhattan and beyond,

         11  which would allow a direct connection along the B

         12  Line to the Bowery subway station, which is located

         13  nearer to the Grand Street Station than Canal Street

         14  and (2) trains along the underserved F Line tunnel

         15  between Brooklyn, Manhattan and Queens, which could

         16  serve some riders on the D and Q who would otherwise

         17  have reduced service.

         18                 Replace the planned infrequent one-

         19  stop shuttle between the Grand Street and

         20  Broadway/Lafayette subway stations with a shuttle

         21  that runs further uptown.

         22                 Abandon plans to terminate the W Line

         23  in Downtown Brooklyn on weekends until regular B

         24  train service is restored.

         25                 There are related steps that the City
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          2  of New York should explore:

          3                 City transportation officials should

          4  explore how to speed up the work on the Manhattan

          5  Bridge Project, which started in 1981 and is not

          6  slated to finish until 2011.

          7                 The G Train:  The Straphangers

          8  Campaign urges New York City Transit to reconsider

          9  plans to terminate the G train at the Court Square

         10  subway station in Queens.

         11                 Transit officials have said the

         12  change is needed to accommodate a new V train along

         13  the Queens Boulevard Line.  But any thousands of G

         14  riders will have their trips lengthened and be

         15  forced to make inconvenient transfers to switch to

         16  the E and F on the Queens Boulevard Line.

         17                 Respected transportation planning

         18  groups like the Regional Plan Association believe

         19  that it is unnecessary to cleave the G in half.  In

         20  response, New York City Transit officials are

         21  testing whether they can operate the G along with

         22  the V, E and F on the Queens Boulevard Line within

         23  existing constraints.

         24                 Given the controversy and the

         25  dramatic impact on G riders, the Straphangers
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          2  Campaign urges that an independent transportation

          3  consultant be asked to review New York City

          4  Transit's tests.

          5

          6  Testimony of:

          7  Don Lee

          8  GRAND Coalition

          9

         10                 The GRAND Coalition is an alliance of

         11  Chinatown and Lower East Side community leaders,

         12  civic organizations and small businesses united to

         13  demand accountability.  As loyal transit customers

         14  and supporters of public transportation, we are

         15  outraged by the MTA's total disregard of our

         16  communities.

         17                 We are extremely disappointed with

         18  the MTA's inadequate Manhattan Bridge repair service

         19  plan.  This plan which was adopted and approved

         20  without public hearings will effectively shutting

         21  down the Grand Street subway station for four years.

         22    The current plan will force an additional 27,000

         23  daily riders to walk on the most dangerous street in

         24  Manhattan- Canal Street (between 1996 and 1998,

         25  there were 164 reported accidents involving
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          2  pedestrians.  In 1988 there were 139 combined auto

          3  and pedestrian accidents in just one of the

          4  intersection alone.)  Furthermore, this plan may

          5  also add an additional hour to our daily commutes

          6  and will definitely increase vehicular traffic and

          7  pollution to our neighborhood.

          8                 The MTA has shifted blame to the DOT

          9  for the disruption.  That is unfortunate, since we

         10  want to work together to correct the problem and not

         11  look for scapegoats.  It's time for brain storming

         12  and not blame storming.  It's time for the MTA and

         13  DOT to engage our communities in formulating

         14  alternative service plans to help to minimize the

         15  impending disruption.  It is for Chairman Kalikow

         16  and New York City DOT Commissioner Weinshall to work

         17  with the community.

         18                 The Grand Street area functions as a

         19  business center, tourist attractions, and

         20  residential community.  There are schools, senior

         21  centers, day care facilities, social service

         22  organizations, churches, temples and synagogues.

         23  Grand Street is a vibrant hub that must be supported

         24  and not ignored.  The impending closing will have a

         25  substantial adverse impact on our communities, and
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          2  may be fatal to many local businesses.  We are

          3  outraged at the total lack of planning by the City

          4  and the DOT and we are outraged at the lack of

          5  responsibility by the City for allowing the

          6  Manhattan Bridge Repair Project to be so out of

          7  control.  Moreover, we are outraged by the MTA's

          8  refusal to meet with the community even after such

          9  public officials as Speaker Vallone, Congressman

         10  Nadler, Congresswoman Velasquez, Mayor Giuliani,

         11  Assembly Speaker Silver, Public Advocate Mark Green,

         12  Comptroller Hevesi, TWU President Toussaint and

         13  other leaders supporting our demand for the MTA to

         14  work with us.

         15                 The GRAND Coalition demand an

         16  official MTA hearing to consider and adopt the

         17  following practical, sensible, responsible and very

         18  reasonable proposals:

         19                 Performed a formal study and work

         20  with the community in formulating solutions.

         21                 Add subway and bus service to nearby

         22  stations affording riders continued access to Grand

         23  Street.

         24                 Provide free direct shuttle services

         25  to and from Grand Street.
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          2                 Shorten the period of disruption by

          3  completing construction in one- two years, not four

          4  years.

          5                 We recognize and support the City's

          6  efforts to maintain infrastructure systems.  But we

          7  must not overlook the City's obligations to minimize

          8  resulting disruptions and to provide safe and

          9  effective alternative solutions to our citizens.

         10  Three to four years of disruption is not temporary

         11  and is not minimal, and will devastate our

         12  communities and our people.  We want to work with

         13  the MTA and DOT to help minimize the disruption, but

         14  our offers have fallen on deaf ears.  It is time for

         15  the MTA and DOT to listen to work with us.

         16

         17  Testimony of:

         18  Henry Chung

         19  President

         20  Chinese Consolidated Benevolent Association (CCBA)

         21

         22                 CCBA is a federation of community-

         23  based business and cultural organizations serving

         24  the Chinese- American Community in the greater New

         25  York Metropolitan Area.  As the umbrella
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          2  organization for Chinese- American business and

          3  cultural institutions and organizations, CCBA has,

          4  for over 100 years, continuously provided support

          5  and counseling for community groups, organizations

          6  and individuals, and also serves as their

          7  representative and collective voice on issues that

          8  affect the community.  Among its various functions,

          9  CCBA helps to facilitate communications between the

         10  Chinese- American Community and governmental bodies

         11  and agencies regarding issues that affect our

         12  community.  You can imagine our disappointment over

         13  the lack of community input and planning regarding

         14  the proposed suspension of service at the Grand

         15  Street Subway Station.

         16                 The Chinese Community in New York has

         17  experienced significant growth over the past three

         18  decades, both geographically and in the size of its

         19  population.  During that period, the Grand Street

         20  Station has become a vital transportation hub,

         21  connecting visitors, shoppers, students, seniors and

         22  other family members that reside in the outlying

         23  boroughs with Manhattan's Chinatown.  While

         24  Chinatown is well known for its cultural

         25  attractions, history, shopping and food service, it
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          2  is also a major economic hub that supports many

          3  Chinese Americans as well as recent immigrants from

          4  throughout the world.  Grand Street Station is the

          5  primary subway stop for workers, business owners and

          6  customers commuting to and from Chinatown, and Grand

          7  Street serves as a major pedestrian artery and

          8  commercial destination.  The fact that ridership at

          9  the Grand Street Station has grown exponentially is

         10  consistent with economic revitalization and growth

         11  of Chinatown in the neighborhood north and east of

         12  Grand Street.  The proposed virtual closing will

         13  have a profound adverse impact on our citizens and

         14  the entire community.  The lives of our families,

         15  young and old, our students, our workers, our

         16  religious institutions, our businesses, and our

         17  economy will be hurt.  Indeed, there are concerns

         18  whether many of our businesses can even survive the

         19  closing of the Grand Street Subway Station for even

         20  several months, much less several years.

         21                 In our opinion, the classification of

         22  the closing of the Grand Street Station, scheduled

         23  to last for four years, as a temporary change is

         24  disingenuous, irresponsible and unreasonable. It

         25  also demonstrates how out of touch the MTA is with
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          2  our neighborhood.  If this so- called temporary

          3  change is mishandled, it is likely that the negative

          4  impact on our community and its businesses will be

          5  permanent, if not fatal.  We agree with Speaker

          6  Vallone, Assembly Speaker Silver, the Mayor and many

          7  elected officials in calling for a formal public

          8  hearings.

          9                 Our community's endurance in the face

         10  of many prior disruptions is testimony to our

         11  resilience and willingness to work with the MTA and

         12  DOT.  Please support us in ensuring that community

         13  inputs are part of the process to analyzing the true

         14  potential impact of the proposed closing, and in

         15  devising a service strategy and plan that can truly

         16  address the needs of our community during this

         17  period of disruption.  We are prepared to work with

         18  the MTA and the DOT in formulating a plan to ensure

         19  that our quality of life is maintained, even as

         20  these disruptions occur.

         21

         22  Testimony of:

         23  Rocky Chin

         24

         25                 Good morning, Chairman Dear and
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          2  members of the Committee.  My name is Rocky Chin.  I

          3  am a 20- year resident of the Lower East Side, a

          4  civil rights attorney and member of the GRAND

          5  Coalition, and I am a candidate for City Council in

          6  District One.

          7                 On April 5, 2001, over 1,000 members

          8  of the Chinatown and Lower East Side community

          9  demonstrated at the Grand Street Subway station

         10  protesting the decision by the MTA to suspend

         11  service for four years.  Day care teachers, parents,

         12  garment workers, students from nearby schools and

         13  local business owners joined with members of the TWU

         14  Local 100 to protest this decision. Significantly,

         15  many elected officials also took time off from their

         16  busy schedules to stand with us.  This demonstration

         17  follows other demonstrations the GRAND Coalition

         18  organized at the MTA headquarters and countless

         19  meetings where hundreds of community members have

         20  spoken against the MTA's decision.

         21                 So why hasn't the MTA taken any steps

         22  to respond to all of our voices and these concerns?

         23  We have asked commuters and residents and business

         24  owners to call the MTA Chairman Peter Kalikow and

         25  the DOT Commissioner Iris Weinshall, but these
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          2  individuals are accountable, ultimately to Governor

          3  Pataki and Mayor Giuliani, respectively.  The

          4  silence from Governor Pataki's office is deafening.

          5  We ask the City Council to join with the GRAND

          6  Coalition in demanding some answers and some action

          7  from Governor Pataki, and we ask you to support our

          8  reasonable request to meet with MTA Chairman Peter

          9  Kalikow.

         10                 We in the GRAND Coalition also ask

         11  the City Council to demand the DOT produce complete

         12  documentation as to the Manhattan Bridge Repair

         13  Project.  Why has it taken so long?  What if any

         14  additional delays were caused in part by the

         15  involvement of the now deposed and discredited Chief

         16  Engineer?  What steps has Commissioner Weinshall

         17  taken, if any, to address the concerns of the GRAND

         18  Coalition since taking office?  These are questions

         19  that deserve answers and we demand that they be

         20  given.

         21                 Not long ago, Speaker Sheldon Silver,

         22  who represents this district in the Assembly, held

         23  an official Assembly public hearing.  This is

         24  something the MTA has refused to do.  I am outraged

         25  that the MTA has refused to hear from the people
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          2  whose daily lives will be adversely impacted by the

          3  suspension of service at Grand Street.  We hope that

          4  Speaker Silver's hearing will result in concrete

          5  recommendations to the DOT and MTA, and together

          6  with the New York City Council and this Committee,

          7  we hope our elected officials will demonstrate to

          8  our communities that they, not the MTA or the DOT,

          9  call the shots in this City and State.

         10

         11  Testimony of:

         12  Sue Lee

         13  Executive Director

         14  Chinatown Manpower Project, Inc.

         15

         16                 Good morning.  I am Sue Lee,

         17  Executive Director of Chinatown Manpower Project, a

         18  non- profit community organization located in the

         19  heart of Chinatown.  We have been serving the

         20  community for over twenty- eight years through our

         21  social service and economic development programs.

         22                 Although the suspension of the B, D

         23  and Q subway service directly to Grand Street poses

         24  a number of consequences to our community, the most

         25  devastating impact would be on the businesses around
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          2  Grand Street.

          3                 The businesses around Grand Street

          4  are owned mostly by immigrants who saved their hard-

          5  earned money to start the business.  A dramatic

          6  reduction of foot traffic on twenty surrounding

          7  streets near the Grand Street Station would cause a

          8  large number of these businesses to declines,

          9  relocate, or even worst, foreclose.

         10                 The following positive steps would

         11  help to mitigate the detriments brought by the

         12  proposed MTA changes.

         13                 1.  Conduct a study of impacts to the

         14  community before project start.  Provide examples of

         15  work done in the past of similar circumstances and

         16  its impacts and outcomes to those communities.

         17                 2.  Does the MTA have a reserve fund

         18  or does it plan to set up one in order to provide

         19  programs and resources to the community?

         20                 3.  Support a tax credit plan for

         21  businesses affected, or provide new benefits to

         22  businesses mitigating revenues lost during this

         23  period of construction.

         24                 4.  Designate specific drop- off and

         25  pick- up points located near the Grand Street subway
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          2  station for van services between Grand Street and

          3  various points in Brooklyn.

          4                 5.  Possibly implementing a trolley

          5  service covering the areas affected for easy hop on

          6  and off of visitors and commuters to increase

          7  tourism and economic activities in the neighborhood.

          8                 6.  Collaborate and provide resources

          9  to local community economic development agencies

         10  with the capacity to communicate in the local

         11  languages to render technical assistance to

         12  businesses in the affected areas to ensure business

         13  survival and growth, such as strategizing and

         14  implementing effective marketing plans, inventory

         15  control and energy savings plan.

         16                 7.  Last but most importantly,

         17  provide shuttle buses from DeKalb, Brooklyn directly

         18  to Grand street.  MTA said this can not be done but

         19  yet shuttle buses are still being provided from

         20  Brooklyn to Manhattan across the Williamsburg bridge

         21  even after the completion of track repair on the

         22  bridge.

         23                 Let's not ask what the community can

         24  do and sacrifice for MTA, but what MTA can do for

         25  the community.  We no longer demand to be heard.  We
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          2  demand action and not empty words of support.

          3                 I ask the City Council in its wisdom

          4  and position to deliver results.

          5                 Thank you.

          6

          7  Testimony of:

          8  Mike Doyle

          9  Associate Director

         10  New York City Transit Riders Council

         11

         12                 My name is Mike Doyle, and I am the

         13  Associate Director of the New York City Transit

         14  Riders Council.  We are the legislatively mandated

         15  representatives of the ridership of New York City

         16  Transit.  I am here today to share with you three

         17  main concerns we have regarding Transit's ability to

         18  meet growing ridership demand and satisfy the

         19  public's desire for input into the service planning

         20  process.

         21                 First and foremost, Transit must

         22  overhaul the loading and scheduling guidelines that

         23  it uses to determine appropriate levels of service

         24  for subways and buses.  These guidelines were

         25  adopted in mid- July 1980s, when travel patterns
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          2  were different, ridership was plummeting, and

          3  Transit couldn't afford to add new service.  They

          4  are hopelessly out of date in today's climate of

          5  unprecedented ridership growth.  They were

          6  ungenerous to begin with.  Under the guidelines,

          7  standees are allotted a mere three square feet of

          8  space and additional peak service is not deemed

          9  necessary until all standee space is full. Even

         10  during off- peak times, when Transit's own

         11  guidelines mandate that a seat be provided for every

         12  customer, Transit has repeatedly shown that it

         13  prefers to fill trains as much as possible rather

         14  than add service.  Thus, riders can be tightly

         15  packed into trains during off- peak hours, as the

         16  Daily News noted in its recent series of transit

         17  articles, even as late as 1:00 a.m.  Without a

         18  revision of these guidelines to allot more elbow

         19  room during peak hours and shorten waits for trains

         20  during off- peak hours, no matter how much service

         21  Transit adds, the old guidelines will make sure that

         22  riders remain crowded and unhappy at all hours.

         23                 Keeping the old guidelines will also

         24  make sure that service reliability figures never

         25  improve.  As more customers compete for less- and-
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          2  less space on board trains, loading times lengthen

          3  and trains are delayed, hurting Transit's ability to

          4  run reliable, timely service.  This problem was

          5  highlighted by us in our 2000 report on subway

          6  service reliability, Timing Is Everything.

          7                 Another important factor in Transit's

          8  ability to meet the needs of skyrocketing ridership

          9  is its incoming fleet of new IRT cars.  The new cars

         10  will help Transit expand the subway fleet and

         11  accommodate more riders.  However, the new fleet is

         12  currently mired in repeated technical problems that

         13  have forced 140 cars to be taken out of service and

         14  thrown the agency's quality control procedures for

         15  new equipment into question.  Transit must do

         16  everything in its power to solve these glitches once

         17  and for all so that new cars can continue entering

         18  revenue service.  Transit must also ensure that such

         19  repeated difficulties not recur when new BMT and IND

         20  cars begin to arrive later this year.

         21                 Finally, we think that Transit needs

         22  to redouble its efforts to be open to public input.

         23  Although the agency usually does a good job in this

         24  area and has been very open to input from our group,

         25  it has not done a good job when it comes to
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          2  temporary service changes, like the Manhattan Bridge

          3  Reroute Plan.  We understand that the agency is not

          4  legally required to hold public hearings for

          5  temporary service changes.  We also acknowledge that

          6  the plan is required because of an NYCDOT bridge

          7  rehabilitation project over which Transit has no

          8  control.  But just because the agency is not

          9  required to hold public hearings does not mean that

         10  it cannot do so.  We think in this instance formal

         11  hearings should have been held.  The Manhattan

         12  Bridge changes will last for three years or more,

         13  which is as good as permanent in the eyes of the

         14  riders, and many residents of affected communities

         15  rightly feel that they were shut out of the planning

         16  process for these changes. By holding full- blown

         17  hearings Transit may have been able to avoid much of

         18  the controversy that now surrounds this issue.

         19                 With attention given to these three

         20  issues, Transit should be able to rise above the

         21  current imbroglio that has surrounded its recent

         22  service planning initiatives.  It should finally be

         23  able to offer real improvements in terms of the

         24  rights shared by all riders to enjoy a convenient

         25  level of service and, most importantly, to be heard.
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          2    At least that is our hope.

          3                 Thank you.

          4

          5  Testimony of:

          6  Tina Chan

          7  Vice- President

          8  Chairwoman/Transportation Committee

          9  Queens Civic Congress, Inc.

         10

         11                 Submitted to:  Office of the Council

         12  of the City of New York, Office of the Speaker-

         13  Public Hearing April 19, 2001

         14

         15                 Mr. Peter Kalikow

         16                 Chairman

         17                 Metropolitan Transportation Authority

         18                 347 Madison Avenue

         19                 New York, NY  10017

         20

         21                 Re:  F and G Train Re- routing

         22                      New V Train Routing

         23

         24                 Dear Mr. Kalikow,

         25
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          2                 The Queens Civic Congress,

          3  representing 99 civic associations throughout the

          4  Borough of Queens, wishes to protest the planned new

          5  V train routing and the re- routing of the F and G

          6  trains.  We would like to document our rationale and

          7  offer a suggestion that would meet the rigid

          8  premises outlines below.

          9                 Basic Mass Transportation Premises of

         10  the Queens Civic Congress:

         11                 A plan to improve service to one

         12  community should not result in the diminishment of

         13  service to another community.

         14                 A new train line should enhance, but

         15  not curtail services to existing train lines.

         16                 A plan should encourage people to use

         17  mass transit and not create obstacles that would

         18  instead encourage existing riders to take their

         19  cars.

         20                 G Train:  We Recommend MTA Rescind

         21  Court Square Termination Plan.  We are happy to hear

         22  that you are rethinking the original plan to

         23  eliminate the current G train route between Court

         24  Square and Forest Hills.  The G train, which serves

         25  northern Brooklyn and central Queens, has seen a 33
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          2  percent increase in ridership in recent years.  The

          3  plan to terminate the G train at Court Square will

          4  add travel time for riders and thus encourage them

          5  to abandon the line in favor of autos.  A further

          6  inconvenience to riders making the connection to the

          7  E and F trains at Court Square requires climbing a

          8  full set of stairs, walking a city block underground

          9  and descending another set of stairs. During rush

         10  hour, the overcrowding of the platforms by these

         11  transfers will become very dangerous.

         12                 F Train:  We Recommend MTA Rescind

         13  Re- routing Plan.

         14                 The negative consequences of the F

         15  train re- routing are dire.  Many riders from a

         16  variety of Queens neighborhoods would be

         17  inconvenienced and disenfranchised by re- routing

         18  the F train to 63rd Street.  For example:

         19                 Many passengers are destined to

         20  Queens Plaza and 23rd Street/Ely Avenue because of

         21  three important and growing facilities in that

         22  neighborhood: The Queens Atrium Corporate Center,

         23  LaGuardia Community College and the Citibank

         24  Building.

         25                 Thousands of other F train passengers
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          2  need to go to Manhattan's revitalized east side via

          3  the 6 train on Lexington Avenue.

          4                 Thousands of other F train riders

          5  access the 8th Avenue E train for the west side and

          6  World Trade Center via the 5th Avenue/53rd Station.

          7                 Routing these F train riders via 63rd

          8  Street forces them to transfer at the Roosevelt

          9  Avenue Station for V or E trains to continue their

         10  journey.  The Roosevelt Avenue Station is already

         11  overcrowded and dangerous due to the transfer with

         12  the 7 train. Additional transfers of V and E trains

         13  will cause life- threatening conditions there.  As a

         14  further inconvenience, F train riders east of Van

         15  Wyck Boulevard will end up with no express service

         16  between Jamaica and Forest Hills and will lose a

         17  single seat ride to Long Island City and the East

         18  Side of Manhattan.   We believe that a free transfer

         19  at 63rd Street to the Lexington Avenue line will

         20  most likely not be well utilized because it involves

         21  a four- block outdoor walk to 59th Street.

         22                 These changes would clearly diminish

         23  service to many and discourage subway ridership.  We

         24  are puzzled why such a plan would be brought

         25  forward.
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          2                 V Train:  We Recommend you Run V as

          3  Express from Queens to Manhattan via 63rd Street

          4  Tunnel to Brooklyn.  Our recommendation is to

          5  operate the new V train as an express from 179th

          6  Street to Union Turnpike/71st Avenue/Roosevelt

          7  Avenue and then to 21st Street- Queensbridge, then

          8  travel through the 63rd Street Tunnel, with a stop

          9  at the Roosevelt Island.  Once in Manhattan, travel

         10  west on 63rd Street with a stop at Lexington Avenue,

         11  then south on 7th Avenue with stops at 57th Street,

         12  49th Street and 42nd Street.  At which point, switch

         13  over to express track via Broadway N and R Lines

         14  with stops at 34th Street, 14th Street, Canal Street

         15  and continue on as a Brooklyn Express.

         16                 The 63rd Street Tunnel connection is

         17  supposed to provide a 20 percent increase in subway

         18  service between Queens and Manhattan along the

         19  Queens Boulevard Line and allow more E and F trains

         20  to run.  V trains running express along with E and F

         21  trains should yield a similar increase in capacity,

         22  reduce congestion and improve ridership.  Running

         23  the V train in Manhattan along Broadway which is

         24  almost parallel to the Lexington Avenue Line will

         25  encourage riders who normally transfer to the 4, 5,
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          2  and 6 train to stay on.  We submit that the plan to

          3  run both V and F trains together along 6th Avenue

          4  does not serve any purpose.

          5                 We would like to emphasize the

          6  importance of maintaining all existing services to

          7  E, F, G and R trains while introducing a new V train

          8  that will reduce overcrowding on the Queens

          9  Boulevard Lines and provide new alternatives to

         10  Queens riders from a wide variety of neighborhoods.

         11                 The Executive and Transportation

         12  Committees of the Queens Civic Congress would

         13  appreciate an opportunity to discuss this proposal

         14  with responsible staff as soon as possible.  Please

         15  contact me at (718) 802- 5476 to arrange this

         16  meeting.

         17                 Sincerely,

         18                 Tina Chan

         19                 Vice- President

         20                 Chairwoman/Transportation Committee.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 19th day of April 2001.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH

         25
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          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH
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